
Please note:  Certain or all items on this agenda may be recorded on tape 

 
Agenda compiled by: 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
Telephone No: 
 

 
Stuart Robinson 
 
 
 
247 4360 

Principal Scrutiny Adviser: 
Peter Marrington 
Telephone No: 395 1151 
 
 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
A 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (ENVIRONMENT AND NEIGHBOURHOODS) 
 

 
Meeting to be held in the Civic Hall, Leeds on 

Monday, 16th June, 2008 at 1.00 pm 
 

A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board  
in a Committee Room at 12.30 pm 

 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
B Anderson (Chair) - Adel and Wharfedale 

A Blackburn - Farnley and Wortley 

A Castle - Harewood 

B Cleasby - Horsforth 

A Gabriel - Beeston and Holbeck 

D Hollingsworth - Burmantofts and 
Richmond Hill 

G Hyde - Killingbeck and 
Seacroft 

J Langdale - Temple Newsam 

                            J Marjoram - Calverley and 
Farsley 

J McKenna - Armley 

M Rafique - Chapel Allerton 

A Taylor - Gipton and Harehills 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded.) 
 
(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, written 
notice of an appeal must be received by the Chief 
Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours 
before the meeting) 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

 
           No exempt items or information have  
           been identified on this agenda 
 

 



 

 
C 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To declare any personal / prejudicial interests for 
the purpose of Section 81 (3) of the Local 
Government Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of 
the Members Code of Conduct. 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
To receive and approve the minutes of the 
previous meeting on 13th May 2008. 
 

1 - 6 



 

 
D 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

7   
 

  INPUT TO WORK PROGRAMME 2008/09 -
SOURCES OF WORK AND ESTABLISHING 
BOARD'S PRIORITIES 
 
(a) To hear from the Executive Member 

(Neighbourhoods and Housing) and officers 
on current issues and ask questions 

 
(b) To consider a report of the Head of Scrutiny 

and Member Development providing 
information to assist the Board to develop its 
work programme for 2008/09 on:- 

 
 (i)  Board’s Terms of Reference. 
 

(ii) Core information on relevant aspects of   
         the:-   

 

•   Local Area Agreement/Leeds   
           Strategic Plan 
 

• Corporate Assessment Actions 2008 
 

• Corporate performance management  
information (PIs) and any identified 
areas for improvement; 

 

• Details of any forthcoming external   
           audit  reviews; 

 

• Outstanding Issues from previous 
Municipal Year 

 
(iii) Current Forward Plan and minutes of 

last Executive Board  meeting. 
 

7 - 60 

8   
 

  DETERMINE WORK PROGRAMME 2008/9 
 
To consider the Board’s formal conclusions and 
recommendations arising from consideration of 
Item 7. 
 

61 - 
66 



 

 
E 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

9   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETINGS 
 
To note and approve the following:- 
 
Thursday 24th July 2008 at 10.00am 
Monday 8th September 2008 at 10.00am 
Monday 13th October 2008 at 10.00am 
Monday 10th November 2008 at 10.00am 
Monday 8th December 2008 at 1.00pm 
Monday 12th January 2009 at 10.00am 
Monday 9th February 2009 at 10.00am 
Monday 16th March 2009 at 10.00am 
Monday 20th April 2009 at 10.00am 
 
 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 16th June, 2008 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (ENVIRONMENT AND NEIGHBOURHOODS) 
 

TUESDAY, 13TH MAY, 2008 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor B Anderson in the Chair 

 Councillors C Beverley, A Blackburn, 
D Coupar, Mrs R Feldman, A Gabriel, 
D Hollingsworth, R Lewis, A Ogilvie and 
F Robinson 

 
 
 

98 Apologies for Absence  
 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors G Hyde and L 
Rhodes-Clayton. 
 

99 Declarations of Interest  
 

Councillors B Anderson and A Blackburn both declared a personal interest in 
any matters relating to their membership of West/North West Leeds Homes 
ALMO.  Councillor Coupar declared a personal interest in any matters relating 
to her membership of  Belle Isle Tenants Management Organisation.  
Councillor A Gabriel declared a personal interest in any matters relating to her 
membership of Beeston Hill and Holbeck Residents Association.  Councillor D 
Hollingsworth declared a personal interest in any matters relating to his 
membership of Leeds East/North East Homes ALMO.  Councillor Lewis 
declared a personal interest in any matters relating to his membership as a 
Panel Member on South Leeds Homes. 
 

100 Minutes - 26th March 2008 - Any Matters Arising  
 

(a) The Chair reported that he had received emails from a group called 
 Leeds Organic Growers (LOGs) from the Kirkstall area, an organisation 
 that collects garden waste in the Kirkstall/Weetwood area, and claims its 
 collection costs are lower than those of the Council.  Members felt that 
 they did not have all the relevant information in order to compare like for 
 like.   
 
(b) Members expressed concern regarding the backlog of domestic refuse  
 collections following the industrial dispute.  It was felt that the 
 contingency plans had not been effective, as some collections had 
 been outstanding for nearly four weeks or more, especially in the outer 
 areas  of the City.  
 

           Paul Langford, Chief Housing Services Officer was in attendance and 
 informed the meeting that he would forward Members’ concerns to the 
 Chief Environmental Health Officer to investigate and report back to the 
 Chair.   

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 16th June, 2008 

 

                                              
RESOLVED – That, subject to the above comments, the minutes of the 
meeting held on 26th March 2008 be approved as a correct record. 
 

101 Minutes - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 11th March and 8th April 
2008  

 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
meetings held on 11th March and 8th April 2008 be received and noted. 
 

102 Minutes - Executive Board - 16th April 2008  
 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of The Executive Board meeting held on  
16th April 2008 be received and noted. 
 

103 Scrutiny Inquiry - Housing Lettings Pressures - Draft Report  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report for 
Members’ consideration, attaching the draft final report of the Board’s inquiry 
into Housing Lettings Pressures.  The draft inquiry report reflected the 
evidence presented to Members and the subsequent discussions at the 
Working Group meetings. 
 
The Board’s inquiry had been undertaken in accordance with the Council’s 
Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules and, as such, advice on the draft 
recommendations has been sought from the Director of Environment and 
Neighbourhoods.  The following advice was given to the meeting: 
 
Recommendation 2   
“That, to supplement the Member briefing sessions (referred to above), the 
Strategic Landlord produce and maintain a Members’ handbook on the 
Council’s lettings Polices. 
 
Rationale   
Seek to clarify that this should relate to Lettings Policies. 
 
Recommendation 13 
That, within 12 months, the Chief Housing Services Officer establishes and 
commences a process, involving all key stakeholders, to determine the future 
customer profile of Council Housing within Leeds. 
 
Rationale   
This seeks to provide clarity around this process being targeted at who 
Council Housing will be for rather than the organisation and management of 
Council stock – which is how the previous recommendation could be 
interpreted.” 
 
The Chair welcomed to the meeting Paul Langford, Chief Housing Services 
Officer and John Statham, Strategic Landlord Manager, both from 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 16th June, 2008 

 

Environment and Neighbourhoods Department who responded to Members’ 
questions and comments. 
 
RESOLVED -   That, subject to the following amendments, the report be 
referred to the Executive Board Member for Neighbourhoods and Housing 
and the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods for consideration at the 
earliest opportunity:    
 
Agenda Page 31 (Report Page 5) 

• Paragraph 1: Delete ‘letting’ and insert ‘lettings’ 

• Paragraph 2, 6th bullet point: Include examples of unacceptable 
 behaviour – e.g. significant rent arrears, anti social behaviour and 
 perpetrators of domestic violence. 

 
Agenda Page 32 (Report Page 6) 

• Paragraph 5:  Insert title immediately beforehand ‘Supply and demand 
 for Council Housing in Leeds’ 

• Paragraph 6: Insert additional bullet point detailing extent of the current 
 waiting list (i.e. the Leeds Homes Register – 30k registered of which 
 1300 have Priority Extra housing needs, 1700 have Priority housing 
 needs and 27k have General housing needs.) 
 
Agenda Page 37 (Report Page 11) 

• Paragraph 33, 5th bullet point: Include brief explanation of ‘a Housing 
 Solutions approach’ or include reference to later section in the report, 
 specifically paragraph 61. 

• Paragraph 35, 2nd bullet point: Delete ‘…is suggested is some…’ and 
 insert ‘…is suggested in some…’ 

 
Agenda Page 38 (Report Page 12) 

• Paragraph 40 (last sentence): Delete ‘mat’ and insert ‘may’. 
 
Agenda Page 39 (Report Page 13) 

• Paragraph 43: Delete ‘…number of bedroom required.’ And insert 
 ‘…number of bedrooms required.’  
 
Agenda Page 41 (Report Page 15) 

• Paragraph 51: Delete ‘…due to be re-launched…’ and insert ‘…due to 
 be relaunched…’. Delete ‘We whole-heartedly…’ and insert ‘ We 
 wholeheartedly…’ 

• Paragraph 55: Delete ‘…overcrowding or under occupation.’ and insert 
 ‘…‘…overcrowding or under-occupation.’’ 

 
Agenda Page 48 (Report Page 22) 

• Reports and Publications Submitted: Insert ‘Copies of the above reports 
 are available on request’ 

 
Agenda Page 33 (Report Page 7) 

• Recommendation 2 

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 16th June, 2008 

 

"That, to supplement the Member briefing sessions (referred to above), 
the Strategic Landlord produce and maintain a Members’ handbook on 
the Council’s Lettings Policies. 
 

Agenda Page 35 (Report Page 9) 

• Recommendation 4 

That, working with each of the Arms Length Management Organisations 
(ALMOs) and the Belle Isle Tenant Management Organisation (BITMO), 
the Strategic Landlord seeks to develop a set of principles to ensure that 
all information on all the Local Lettings Policies in operation across the 
City is  easily accessible by all members of the public, and are presented 
in a clear and consistent manner, by December 2008.  
 

Agenda Page 47 (Report Page 21) 

•  Recommendation 13 

That, within 12 months, the Chief Housing Services Officer establishes 
and commences a process, involving all key stakeholders, to determine  
the future customer profile of the Council Housing within Leeds. 

 
104 Scrutiny Inquiry - The Council's CO2 Emissions- Draft Report  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report for 
Members’ consideration, attaching the draft final report of the Board’s inquiry 
into the Council’s CO² Emissions (Appendix 1 refers). 
 
The Board was presented with a proposed redrafted section on ‘Fleet 
Management’ as follows: 
 
Fleet Management  
 
‘We note the work being undertaken by Fleet Services and Environment City 
to minimise the impacts of emissions from Council fleet activity and believe 
that emissions from the Council’s fleet should not be overlooked. 

 
We were advised that Ultra Low Sulphur Diesel was introduced into the 
Council’s vehicle fleet in 1998 and that exhaust particulate traps have been 
fitted to all fleet vehicles (over 7.5 tonnes) to help improve the air quality in the 
Leeds area.  

 
We were also advised that to further enhance the Council’s commitment to 
minimising the environmental impact of its vehicle fleet, where possible, all 
vehicles purchased meet the current noise and emissions standards.  In 
addition, future vehicle purchasing procedures will ensure that the engines of 
such vehicles meet the EURO 5 criteria, well in advance of any legislative 
requirements. 

 
We also heard that an alternative fuelled vehicle seminar was held by the 
Council during 2007, with invitations being extended to both the public and 
private sectors form around the City.  The purpose of the event was to provide 
an opportunity for participants to attend and see / drive the vehicles first hand. 

Page 4



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 16th June, 2008 

 

 
It is clear to us that new initiatives are constantly being developed and in 
conjunction with Cenex, a government led organisation, and the Energy 
Savings Trust, Fleet Services are investigating the possible use of alternative 
fuelled vehicles in the Council’s fleet of the future.  This work supports the 
review currently being undertaken to map the level of CO2 emissions from 
vehicle deployment and develop a targeted reduction’. 
 
RESOLVED -   That, subject to the following amendments, the report be 
referred to the Director of City Development for consideration at the earliest 
opportunity:    
 
Agenda Page 55  

• Paragraph 3: Delete ‘…CO2 emissions for Leeds City Council…’ and 
 insert ‘‘…CO2 emissions arising from the use of Leeds City Council 
 assets…’ 
 
 Footnote to Paragraph 3:   Current work around (the national indicator) 
 NI185 is producing some quite different figures for our baseline, partly 
 due to a new methodology and partly due to better data collection, so the 
 table included is out of date.  As such, it should be noted that this is 
 indicative and a full baseline for 2008 in line with NI185 is current being 
 established. 
 
Agenda Page 58  

• Recommendation 4: Delete ‘…the current usage patterns be reviewed…’ 
 and insert ‘‘…the current usage patterns of street lighting be reviewed…’ 

 
Agenda Page 59 

• Replace ‘Fleet Management’ section (as above) and ‘Recommendation 
6’ as redrafted and presented to the meeting as follows: 

 
Recommendation 6:   That the Board, or its successor body, be kept up-
to-date regarding: 
 
(i) The on-going investigations around the use of alternative fuelled 
 Vehicles in the Council’s fleet. 
(ii) The outcome of the current review of CO² emissions from vehicle 
  deployment and the arising targeted reduction programme.  

 
105 Scrutiny - Draft Annual Report to Council 2007/08  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development presented a copy of the 
Board’s draft contribution to the Annual report.  The report contained a 
summary from the Chair and reviewed the Board’s inquiries and work 
programme during the past year. 
 
RESOLVED –  That, subject to the following amendments, the Board’s 
contribution to the composite Annual Report be agreed: 
 

Page 5



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 16th June, 2008 

 

Agenda Page 65 

• Insert recommendation 5 on the Inquiry into Housing Lettings Pressure – 
as the main recommendation and detail all other recommendations as 
agreed. 

 
Agenda Page 67 

• Insert brief summary of the agreed statement and detail all 
recommendations as agreed. 

 
Agenda Page 68  

• Integrated Waste Strategy for Leeds, 2nd paragraph : Delete 
 ‘…redistributes this socially and economically...’ and insert 
 ‘…redistributes this to socially and economically...’ 

 
106 Chair's Closing Remarks  
 

The Chair thanked Board Members for their time and commitment over the 
past year.   The Chair also thanked Officers and in particular, Neil Evans, 
Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods, who has made himself 
regularly available.  The Board also thanked the Executive Board Member for 
Neighbourhoods and Housing for engaging in a full and frank debate at the 
beginning of the municipal year.   
 
 
 
The Chair thanked Members for attending and the meeting concluded at 
12.15pm. 
 
 
 

Page 6



 
 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board:  Environment and Neighbourhoods 
 
Date:    16th June 2008 
 
Subject:  Input to the Work Programme 2008/09 - Sources of Work and  
                Establishing the Board’s Priorities 
 

        
 
 
1.0      Purpose of Report  

 

1.1 This report provides information and guidance to assist the Board develop its work 
programme for 2008/09 that is focused on strategic issues. 

 
2.0      Introduction 
 
2.1     Members will aware that the most recent Comprehensive Performance Assessment  

(CPA) for the Council identified the following area for improvement. 
 
CPA Area for Improvement 

 

“While scrutiny has improved with the introduction of seven new Scrutiny 
Committees these still remain inconsistent in their approach to challenging policy 
development.  As a consequence effective challenge to the Council through 
overview and Scrutiny remains inconsistent.  Further development is required to 
ensure a robust approach for all Scrutiny Boards.” 

 

3.0      Background Information 
 
3.1 It is important for Scrutiny Boards in developing their work programme in 2008/09 to 

have regard to the CPAs concerns and focus more on the Council’s corporate 
strategic priorities.  

3.2 Relevant core information from the following key sources have been extracted 
appropriate to this Board’s responsibilities  and attached to this paper to assist 
Members in this process (Appendix 1):  

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Peter Marrington 
 
Tel: 39 51151 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 7



•  Local Area Agreement 

•  Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11 

•  Corporate Performance Management Information 

•  Corporate Assessment Actions 2008 

•  Details of any forthcoming external audit reviews 

•   Outstanding issues from previous Scrutiny Board  
 

3.3   Other sources of work will continue to be ‘requests for scrutiny’ and corporate  
           referrals. 
 
3.4 A copy of the Board’s terms of reference is attached for reference purposes. 

(Appendix 2 ) 
 
3.5 The relevant extract from the latest forward plan and the most recent Executive 

Board minutes are also attached for consideration. (Appendix 3) 
 
 

4.0      Guidance 
   
4.1      Over the last few years of Scrutiny Board work, experience has shown that the   

process is more effective if the Board seeks to minimise the number of substantial 
inquiries running at one time.  

 
4.2      The Board is advised to consider the benefits of single item agendas (excluding  

miscellaneous information and minutes) in order to focus on all the relevant 
evidence and complete the inquiry in a shorter period of time. There are various 
mechanisms available to assist the Board in concluding inquiries quickly whilst the 
issues are pertinent, such as working groups and site visits. 

 
4.3      The agreed Memorandum of Understanding between Executive Board and  
          Overview and Scrutiny which now sits within the Council’s Constitution states; 
 

  “The responsibility of those setting scrutiny work programmes is, therefore, to   
  ensure that items of work come from a strategic approach as well as a need to  
  challenge service performance and respond to issues of high public interest.   

 
  It is recognised that Scrutiny Boards have a ‘watching brief’ role.  In addition   
  information is required for members’ own development process, particularly as   
  membership of the Boards is changed annually.  
  

  However, it is also recognised that agendas are often filled up with reports for this    
  purpose, which takes up time for both officers and Members.  Where Scrutiny   
 Boards wish to ask questions at a general or more strategic level and/or be updated   
 on issues already considered in detail, the facility of Members’ Questions – where a  
 verbal exchange replaces written reports - should be used.   

 
 It is expected that where ever possible prior notification is given of the likely   
 questions to be asked”.  

 

4.4      For the past couple of years the Children's Services Board in particular has   
 developed the approach of devoting one meeting per quarter to overview and   
 performance management. This includes receiving reports and scrutinising executive   
 members and officers on relevant issues. 

 
5.0    Work programming  

Page 8



 
5.1    Councillor Les Carter, Executive Member and officers have been invited to attend this 

meeting of the Board to contribute to discussions about the Board’s work 
programme.  

 
5.2 Following those discussions, the Board is asked to agree an outline work programme 

that prioritises the issues to be investigated.  
 

6.0   Recommendations 
 
6.1 Members are requested to use the attached information and the discussion with 

officers to inform the development and approval of its work programme under the next 
agenda item.  

 
 
 
 
 

 

   
 

 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Council Committees’ Terms of Reference  

Part 3 Section 2B 
Page 1 of 1 
Issue  –  

Scrutiny Board (Environment and Neighbourhoods)  
 
1. In relation to Environment and Neighbourhoods1, to exercise the functions 

of a Scrutiny Board including the following: 
 

(a) to review or scrutinise the exercise of any council or executive function, 
or any other related matter2; 

 
(b) to make reports or recommendations to Council or the Executive in 

connection with the exercise of any functions of the Council or the 
Executive including proposals for changes to policies and practices; 

 
(c) to receive and review external audit and inspection reports; 
 

(d) to act as the appropriate Scrutiny Board3 in relation to the Executive’s 
initial proposals for a plan or strategy within the Budget and Policy 
Framework; and 

(e) to review corporate performance indicators and to make such reports 
and recommendations as it considers appropriate; 

(f)  to review outcomes, targets and priorities within the Leeds Strategic     
Plan and to make such reports and recommendations as it considers 
appropriate; and   

  
  (g)   to review or scrutinise executive decisions made but not implemented.4  
 
2. To receive and monitor formal responses to any reports or recommendations 

made by the Board. 

                                            
1
These are the functions delegated to the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods and the Chief 
Officer (Environment Services) under the officer delegation schemes (council functions) and the 
officer delegation scheme (executive functions), and the functions which the authority has agreed that 
another person should exercise as agent of the authority (Section 27 of the Housing Act 1985).   
2
 including matters pertaining to outside bodies and partnerships to which appointments have been 
made by the authority 
3
 under the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules   

4
 which have been called-in under Rule 22 of the Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules.  

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



D
R
A
F
T
 M
e
m
o
ra
n
d
u
m
 o
f 
L
A
A
  

 N
o
te
: 
T
a
rg
e
ts
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
a
ll
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 t
h
a
t 
w
il
l 
b
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
. 
 N
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 w
it
h
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
 t
o
 f
in
a
li
s
e
 

ta
rg
e
ts
 i
n
 t
h
re
e
 a
re
a
s
. 

  
1
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

o
r 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

B
a
s
e
li
n
e
 

L
A
A
 

 3
 Y
e
a
r 

T
a
rg
e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1
1
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

L
E
A
D
/c
o
n
tr
ib
u
to
ry
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 

a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
w
a
s
te
 

re
u
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 

re
c
y
c
le
d
 a
n
d
 

re
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 

a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
w
a
s
te
 

g
o
in
g
 t
o
 l
a
n
d
fi
ll.
 

 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

A
g
re
e
d
 

N
I 
1
9
2
 P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 w
a
s
te
 s
e
n
t 
fo
r 

re
u
s
e
, 
re
c
y
c
lin
g
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 

 

 2
7
.0
5
%
 

(2
0
0
7
/0
8
) 

 
4
1
.3
2
%
 

 
3
0
.2
6
%
 

 
3
3
.9
4
%
 

 L
E
E
D
S
 C
IT
Y
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 

 V
C
F
S
 b
o
d
ie
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

L
e
e
d
s
 V
o
ic
e
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

F
o
ru
m
 

 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 

e
c
o
lo
g
ic
a
l 

fo
o
tp
ri
n
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 

re
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 

a
n
d
 c
lim

a
te
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 a
n
d
 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
in
g
 

o
th
e
rs
. 

  C
le
a
n
e
r,
 

g
re
e
n
e
r 
a
n
d
 

m
o
re
 a
tt
ra
c
ti
v
e
 

c
it
y
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
rs
. 

         

A
d
d
re
s
s
 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 

p
ro
b
le
m
 s
it
e
s
; 

im
p
ro
v
e
 

c
le
a
n
lin
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
, 
to
 a
n
d
 

q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
g
re
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
. 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

A
g
re
e
d
 

N
I1
9
5
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
tr
e
e
t 

a
n
d
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 

c
le
a
n
lin
e
s
s
 

2
0
0
8
/0
9
 t
o
 

b
e
 u
s
e
d
 a
s
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 

y
e
a
r.
  

 

 
T
a
rg
e
ts
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 a
n
d
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 t
o
 b
e
 s
e
t 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
0
9
. 

 L
E
E
D
S
 C
IT
Y
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

 W
e
s
t 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 F
ir
e
 a
n
d
 

R
e
s
c
u
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

 W
e
s
t 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 M
e
tr
o
 

 V
C
F
S
 b
o
d
ie
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

L
e
e
d
s
 V
o
ic
e
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

F
o
ru
m
 

Page 13



D
R
A
F
T
 M
e
m
o
ra
n
d
u
m
 o
f 
L
A
A
  

 N
o
te
: 
T
a
rg
e
ts
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
a
ll
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 t
h
a
t 
w
il
l 
b
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
. 
 N
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 w
it
h
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
 t
o
 f
in
a
li
s
e
 

ta
rg
e
ts
 i
n
 t
h
re
e
 a
re
a
s
. 

  
2
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

o
r 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

B
a
s
e
li
n
e
 

L
A
A
 

 3
 Y
e
a
r 

T
a
rg
e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1
1
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

L
E
A
D
/c
o
n
tr
ib
u
to
ry
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

T
h
ri
v
in
g
 P
la
c
e
s
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

“d
e
c
e
n
t 
h
o
m
e
s
”.
 

 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

N
I 
1
5
8
 P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 n
o
n
-

d
e
c
e
n
t 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
h
o
m
e
s
 

3
3
.1
%
 

(N
o
v
 

2
0
0
7
) 

 P
ro
v
is
io
n
a
l 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 –
 

ta
rg
e
ts
 

m
a
y
 b
e
 

re
v
is
e
d
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 

fi
n
a
l 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
. 

 

9
%
 

2
7
%
 

 
1
8
%
 

L
E
E
D
S
 C
IT
Y
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

 H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

B
o
d
ie
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
  
L
e
e
d
s
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 R
e
’N
e
w
 

 V
C
F
S
 b
o
d
ie
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 V
C
F
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 G
ro
u
p
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

o
f 
lif
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

m
ix
e
d
 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 g
o
o
d
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 b
e
tt
e
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
. 

 R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 c
ri
m
e
 

a
n
d
 f
e
a
r 
o
f 

c
ri
m
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
, 

d
e
te
c
ti
o
n
, 

o
ff
e
n
d
e
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
rs
. 

 In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

ta
rg
e
te
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

to
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 

w
o
rk
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 p
o
v
e
rt
y
. 

 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 

h
o
m
e
s
. 

 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

A
g
re
e
d
 

N
I 
1
5
4
 N
e
t 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

h
o
m
e
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 

 

3
3
2
7
  

(2
0
0
6
-0
7
) 

 

1
0
2
0
0
 

O
v
e
r 
3
 y
e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

A
t 
le
a
s
t 
 

3
4
0
0
 

a
ft
e
r 
y
e
a
r 
1
 

A
t 
le
a
s
t 

6
8
0
0
 

A
ft
e
r 
y
e
a
r 
2
 

L
E
E
D
S
 C
IT
Y
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

 H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

b
o
d
ie
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 L
e
e
d
s
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 R
e
’N
e
w
 

      

Page 14



D
R
A
F
T
 M
e
m
o
ra
n
d
u
m
 o
f 
L
A
A
  

 N
o
te
: 
T
a
rg
e
ts
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
a
ll
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 t
h
a
t 
w
il
l 
b
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
. 
 N
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 w
it
h
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
 t
o
 f
in
a
li
s
e
 

ta
rg
e
ts
 i
n
 t
h
re
e
 a
re
a
s
. 

  
3
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

o
r 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

B
a
s
e
li
n
e
 

L
A
A
 

 3
 Y
e
a
r 

T
a
rg
e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1
1
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

L
E
A
D
/c
o
n
tr
ib
u
to
ry
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

A
g
re
e
d
 

N
I 
1
5
5
 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
m
e
s
 

d
e
liv
e
re
d
 (
g
ro
s
s
) 

2
3
2
 

(2
0
0
6
/0
7
) 

1
8
0
0
 

(C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
) 

3
0
0
 

8
0
0
 

(C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
) 

L
E
E
D
S
 C
IT
Y
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

 H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

b
o
d
ie
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 L
e
e
d
s
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 R
e
’N
e
w
 

 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 

p
e
o
p
le
. 

 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

L
K
I 
H
A
S
4
 T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 a
c
c
e
p
ta
n
c
e
s
 

m
a
d
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r.
  

1
1
4
2
 

(2
0
0
7
/0
8
) 

1
0
2
2
 

1
1
0
0
 

1
0
6
0
 

L
E
E
D
S
 C
IT
Y
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

 H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

B
o
d
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 L
e
e
d
s
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 W
e
s
t 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

 W
e
s
t 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 P
o
lic
e
 

 V
C
F
S
 b
o
d
ie
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

L
e
e
d
s
 V
o
ic
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 F
o
ru
m
 

 L
e
e
d
s
 C
o
n
fe
d
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

C
o
lle
g
e
s
 

      

Page 15



D
R
A
F
T
 M
e
m
o
ra
n
d
u
m
 o
f 
L
A
A
  

 N
o
te
: 
T
a
rg
e
ts
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
a
ll
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 t
h
a
t 
w
il
l 
b
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
. 
 N
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 w
it
h
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
 t
o
 f
in
a
li
s
e
 

ta
rg
e
ts
 i
n
 t
h
re
e
 a
re
a
s
. 

  
4
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

o
r 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

B
a
s
e
li
n
e
 

L
A
A
 

 3
 Y
e
a
r 

T
a
rg
e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1
1
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

L
E
A
D
/c
o
n
tr
ib
u
to
ry
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

4
%
 

2
0
0
7
/0
8
 

(S
A
P
<
3
5
) 

 

2
.3
6
%
 

3
.4
6
%
 

2
.9
1
%
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

n
o
t 
a
b
le
 t
o
 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te
ly
 h
e
a
t 

th
e
ir
 h
o
m
e
s
. 

 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

A
g
re
e
d
 

N
I 
1
8
7
 T
a
c
k
lin
g
 f
u
e
l 

p
o
v
e
rt
y
 –
 %

 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 

re
c
e
iv
in
g
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 l
iv
in
g
 i
n
 h
o
m
e
s
 

w
it
h
 a
 l
o
w
 e
n
e
rg
y
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 r
a
ti
n
g
 

 

4
4
%
 

2
0
0
7
/0
8
 

(S
A
P
>
=
6
5
) 

4
5
.4
4
%
 

4
4
.3
4
%
 

4
4
.8
9
%
 

L
E
E
D
S
 C
IT
Y
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

 L
e
e
d
s
 P
C
T
 

 H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

b
o
d
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 L
e
e
d
s
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 V
C
F
S
 b
o
d
ie
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

L
e
e
d
s
 V
o
ic
e
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

F
o
ru
m
  

  

In
c
re
a
s
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 

in
c
lu
s
io
n
 i
n
 

d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 a
re
a
s
. 

 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

n
e
w
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 o
n
 l
o
w
 

in
c
o
m
e
s
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 c
re
d
it
 

u
n
io
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
s
a
v
in
g
s
, 

lo
a
n
s
 a
n
d
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
).
 

 

6
7
0
0
 (
J
a
n
 

–
 D
e
c
 

2
0
0
7
) 

7
0
0
0
 

6
7
0
0
 

 
 (
e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
l 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 

2
0
0
7
/0
8
 s
o
 

ta
rg
e
t 
fo
r 

2
0
0
8
/0
9
 i
s
 t
o
 

m
a
in
ta
in
 t
h
is
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
.)
 

 

6
8
5
0
 

L
E
E
D
S
 C
IT
Y
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

 L
e
e
d
s
 C
it
y
 C
re
d
it
 U
n
io
n
 

 V
C
F
S
 b
o
d
ie
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

W
e
s
t 
L
e
e
d
s
 D
e
b
t 
F
o
ru
m
  

C
re
a
te
 s
a
fe
r 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ts
 b
y
 

ta
c
k
lin
g
 c
ri
m
e
  

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

A
g
re
e
d
 

N
I1
6
 S
e
ri
o
u
s
 a
c
q
u
is
it
iv
e
 

c
ri
m
e
 r
a
te
 

  

2
7
.0
 

(r
a
te
 p
e
r 

1
0
0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
) 

 

7
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

o
n
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 

  (2
5
.2
 r
a
te
 p
e
r 

1
0
0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
) 

 

2
.3
%
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 

 (2
6
.4
 r
a
te
 p
e
r 

1
0
0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
) 

 

4
.7
%
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 

 (2
5
.8
 r
a
te
 

p
e
r 
1
0
0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
) 

W
E
S
T
 Y
O
R
K
S
H
IR
E
 

P
O
L
IC
E
 

 L
e
e
d
s
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

 W
e
s
t 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 P
o
lic
e
 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

 

Page 16



D
R
A
F
T
 M
e
m
o
ra
n
d
u
m
 o
f 
L
A
A
  

 N
o
te
: 
T
a
rg
e
ts
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
a
ll
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 t
h
a
t 
w
il
l 
b
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
. 
 N
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 w
it
h
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
 t
o
 f
in
a
li
s
e
 

ta
rg
e
ts
 i
n
 t
h
re
e
 a
re
a
s
. 

  
5
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

o
r 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

B
a
s
e
li
n
e
 

L
A
A
 

 3
 Y
e
a
r 

T
a
rg
e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1
1
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

L
E
A
D
/c
o
n
tr
ib
u
to
ry
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

A
g
re
e
d
 

N
I 
2
0
 A
s
s
a
u
lt
 w
it
h
 i
n
ju
ry
 

c
ri
m
e
 r
a
te
 

 

8
.0
  

(r
a
te
 p
e
r 

1
0
0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
) 

 

8
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

o
n
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 

 (7
.4
 r
a
te
 p
e
r 

1
0
0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
) 

4
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

o
n
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 

 (7
.7
 r
a
te
 p
e
r 

1
0
0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
) 

6
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

o
n
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 

 (7
.5
 r
a
te
 p
e
r 

1
0
0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
) 

W
e
s
t 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

 V
C
F
S
 b
o
d
ie
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

L
e
e
d
s
 V
o
ic
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe
ty
 C
o
n
s
o
rt
iu
m
 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

A
g
re
e
d
 

N
I 
2
4
 S
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 w
a
y
 t
h
e
 p
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 

lo
c
a
l 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
d
e
a
lt
 w
it
h
 

a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

 

2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

n
e
w
 d
a
ta
 

re
tu
rn
 –
 

B
a
s
e
lin
e
 

w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
 

p
la
c
e
 b
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
9
 

N
e
w
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 

–
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 a
n
d
 

m
ile
s
to
n
e
s
 t
o
 

b
e
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
 

b
y
 M

a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
9
 

L
E
E
D
S
 C
IT
Y
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

 W
e
s
t 

Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 

P
o
lic
e
 

 

 
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 

o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 b
y
 

m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 

o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
b
e
tt
e
r 
 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

A
g
re
e
d
 

N
I 
3
0
 R
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 r
a
te
 

o
f 
p
ro
lif
ic
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 

o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 

 

A
w
a
it
in
g
 

H
o
m
e
 

O
ff
ic
e
 

G
u
id
a
n
c
e
. 

B
a
s
e
lin
e
 

w
ill
 b
e
 

c
a
lc
u
la
te
d
 

b
y
 3
0
 M

a
y
 

2
0
0
8
 

5
%
 y
e
a
r 
o
n
 

y
e
a
r 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

in
 r
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 

ra
te
 

5
%
 y
e
a
r 
o
n
 

y
e
a
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

re
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 

ra
te
 

5
%
 y
e
a
r 
o
n
 

y
e
a
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

re
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 

ra
te
 

S
A
F
E
R
 L
E
E
D
S
 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
H
IP
 

 W
e
s
t 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

 W
e
s
t 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 P
o
lic
e
 

 L
e
e
d
s
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

 Y
o
u
th
 O
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

 L
o
c
a
l 
C
ri
m
in
a
l 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 

B
o
a
rd
 

 R
e
’N
e
w
 

 

Page 17



D
R
A
F
T
 M
e
m
o
ra
n
d
u
m
 o
f 
L
A
A
  

 N
o
te
: 
T
a
rg
e
ts
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
a
ll
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 t
h
a
t 
w
il
l 
b
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
. 
 N
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 w
it
h
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
 t
o
 f
in
a
li
s
e
 

ta
rg
e
ts
 i
n
 t
h
re
e
 a
re
a
s
. 

  
6
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

o
r 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

B
a
s
e
li
n
e
 

L
A
A
 

 3
 Y
e
a
r 

T
a
rg
e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1
1
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

L
E
A
D
/c
o
n
tr
ib
u
to
ry
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

J
o
b
c
e
n
tr
e
 P
lu
s
 

 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 S
k
ill
s
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 V
C
F
S
 b
o
d
ie
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

L
e
e
d
s
 V
o
ic
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe
ty
 C
o
n
s
o
rt
iu
m
 

 L
e
e
d
s
 C
o
n
fe
d
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

C
o
lle
g
e
s
 

A
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
fi
rs
t 
ti
m
e
 

e
n
tr
a
n
ts
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
th
 

ju
s
ti
c
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 

a
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
ti
v
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 1
 A
p
ri
l 
a
n
d
 3
1
 

M
a
rc
h
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 

y
e
a
r 
s
p
e
c
if
ie
d
. 
  

 

2
0
7
6
 

(2
0
0
4
/0
5
) 

N
/A
 

L
P
S
A
 2
 

T
a
rg
e
t–
 

fi
n
is
h
e
s
 M

a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
9
 

1
8
7
7
  

N
/A
 

L
P
S
A
 2
 

T
a
rg
e
t–
 

fi
n
is
h
e
s
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

A
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 b
y
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 

a
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
ti
v
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 a
 b
a
il 
o
r 
re
m
a
n
d
 

e
p
is
o
d
e
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

s
p
e
c
if
ie
d
 y
e
a
r.
  
 

 

6
2
2
 (
2
0
0
5
) 

N
/A
 

L
P
S
A
 2
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
–
 

fi
n
is
h
e
s
 M

a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
9
 

5
7
3
  

N
/A
 

L
P
S
A
 2
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
–
 

fi
n
is
h
e
s
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

Y
O
U
T
H
 O
F
F
E
N
D
IN
G
 

S
E
R
V
IC
E
 

 W
e
s
t 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

 W
e
s
t 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 P
o
lic
e
 

 L
e
e
d
s
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

 R
e
’N
e
w
 

 V
C
F
S
 b
o
d
ie
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

Y
o
u
th
 W

o
rk
 P
a
n
e
l 

 L
e
e
d
s
 C
o
n
fe
d
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

C
o
lle
g
e
s
 

 

Page 18



D
R
A
F
T
 M
e
m
o
ra
n
d
u
m
 o
f 
L
A
A
  

 N
o
te
: 
T
a
rg
e
ts
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
a
ll
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 t
h
a
t 
w
il
l 
b
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
. 
 N
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 w
it
h
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
 t
o
 f
in
a
li
s
e
 

ta
rg
e
ts
 i
n
 t
h
re
e
 a
re
a
s
. 

  
7
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

o
r 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

B
a
s
e
li
n
e
 

L
A
A
 

 3
 Y
e
a
r 

T
a
rg
e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1
1
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

L
E
A
D
/c
o
n
tr
ib
u
to
ry
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 l
iv
e
s
 b
y
 

re
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 

h
a
rm

 c
a
u
s
e
d
 b
y
 

s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 

m
is
u
s
e
  

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

A
g
re
e
d
 

N
I 
4
0
 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
d
ru
g
 

u
s
e
rs
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 

in
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 t
re
a
tm

e
n
t 

2
9
7
6
 

(2
0
0
7
/0
8
) 

3
2
0
1
 

3
0
0
6
 

3
0
6
7
 

L
E
E
D
S
 C
IT
Y
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

 L
e
e
d
s
 P
C
T
 

 L
e
e
d
s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 

 V
C
F
S
 b
o
d
ie
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

L
e
e
d
s
 V
o
ic
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe
ty
 C
o
n
s
o
rt
iu
m
 

  

R
e
d
u
c
e
 a
n
ti
-

s
o
c
ia
l 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r.
 

 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

A
g
re
e
d
 

N
I 
2
4
 S
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 w
a
y
 t
h
e
 p
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 

lo
c
a
l 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
d
e
a
lt
 w
it
h
 

a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

 

2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

n
e
w
 d
a
ta
 

re
tu
rn
 –
 

B
a
s
e
lin
e
 

w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
 

p
la
c
e
 b
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
9
 

 

N
e
w
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
–
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 a
n
d
 m

ile
s
to
n
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
 b
y
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

L
E
E
D
S
 C
IT
Y
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

 W
e
s
t 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 P
o
lic
e
 

 

H
a
rm

o
n
io
u
s
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

M
o
re
 i
n
c
lu
s
iv
e
, 

v
a
ri
e
d
 a
n
d
 

v
ib
ra
n
t 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 

e
m
p
o
w
e
ri
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 

c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

a
k
in
g
 

A
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
lo
c
a
l 

p
e
o
p
le
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 

in
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

m
e
e
t 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 

q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
lif
e
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
. 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

N
I 
6
 P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

re
g
u
la
r 
v
o
lu
n
te
e
ri
n
g
 

 

2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

n
e
w
 d
a
ta
 

re
tu
rn
 –
 

B
a
s
e
lin
e
 

w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
 

p
la
c
e
 b
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
9
 

 

N
e
w
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
–
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 a
n
d
 m

ile
s
to
n
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
 b
y
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

L
E
E
D
S
 C
IT
Y
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

 V
C
F
S
 B
o
d
ie
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 A
c
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

 A
rt
s
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
 

 M
u
s
e
u
m
s
, 
L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
, 

A
rc
h
iv
e
s
, 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 

Page 19



D
R
A
F
T
 M
e
m
o
ra
n
d
u
m
 o
f 
L
A
A
  

 N
o
te
: 
T
a
rg
e
ts
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
a
ll
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 t
h
a
t 
w
il
l 
b
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
. 
 N
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 w
it
h
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
 t
o
 f
in
a
li
s
e
 

ta
rg
e
ts
 i
n
 t
h
re
e
 a
re
a
s
. 

  
8
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

o
r 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

B
a
s
e
li
n
e
 

L
A
A
 

 3
 Y
e
a
r 

T
a
rg
e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1
1
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

L
E
A
D
/c
o
n
tr
ib
u
to
ry
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

 
 S
p
o
rt
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 

 L
e
e
d
s
 P
C
T
 

  

A
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 

th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
h
a
t 

a
re
 e
m
p
o
w
e
re
d
 

to
 h
a
v
e
 a
 

g
re
a
te
r 
v
o
ic
e
 

a
n
d
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 

o
v
e
r 
lo
c
a
l 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

a
k
in
g
 

a
n
d
 a
 g
re
a
te
r 

ro
le
 i
n
 p
u
b
lic
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
. 

 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

A
g
re
e
d
 

N
I 
4
 P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 f
e
e
l 
th
e
y
 c
a
n
 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 i
n
 

th
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
lit
y
 

B
a
s
e
lin
e
 

to
 b
e
 s
e
t 

b
y
 2
0
0
8
 

P
la
c
e
 

S
u
rv
e
y
 

 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 o
f 
4
.1
%
 o
n
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 f
ig
u
re
. 

 
(M

e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
 P
la
c
e
 S
u
rv
e
y
 i
n
 A
u
tu
m
n
 2
0
1
0
) 

 

L
E
E
D
S
 C
IT
Y
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

 W
e
s
t 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 P
o
lic
e
 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
  

 W
e
s
t 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 P
o
lic
e
 

 W
e
s
t 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 F
ir
e
 a
n
d
 

R
e
s
c
u
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

 L
e
e
d
s
 P
C
T
 

 V
C
F
S
 b
o
d
ie
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

L
e
e
d
s
 V
o
ic
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

E
m
p
o
w
e
rm

e
n
t 
N
e
tw
o
rk
 

 

a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 

lo
c
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

c
o
h
e
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 

in
te
g
ra
ti
o
n
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 

m
e
a
n
in
g
fu
l 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

v
a
lu
in
g
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
. 

 

E
n
a
b
le
 a
 r
o
b
u
s
t 

a
n
d
 v
ib
ra
n
t 

v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
, 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

fa
it
h
 s
e
c
to
r 
to
 

fa
c
ili
ta
te
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
n
d
 

d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 d
e
liv
e
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

N
I 
7
  
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
a
 

th
ri
v
in
g
 t
h
ir
d
 s
e
c
to
r 

 

T
o
 b
e
 s
e
t 

b
y
 O
ff
ic
e
 

o
f 
th
e
 

T
h
ir
d
 

S
e
c
to
r 

S
u
rv
e
y
 -

A
u
tu
m
n
 

2
0
0
8
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 o
f 
4
.1
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 p
o
in
ts
 o
n
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 

b
y
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
  

 
(m

e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 O
T
S
 s
u
rv
e
y
 i
n
 A
u
tu
m
n
 

2
0
1
0
) 

L
E
E
D
S
 C
IT
Y
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

 V
C
F
 b
o
d
ie
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 V
C
F
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 G
ro
u
p
 

 L
e
e
d
s
 P
C
T
 

 W
e
s
t 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 P
o
lic
e
 

Page 20



D
R
A
F
T
 M
e
m
o
ra
n
d
u
m
 o
f 
L
A
A
  

 N
o
te
: 
T
a
rg
e
ts
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
a
ll
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 t
h
a
t 
w
il
l 
b
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
. 
 N
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 w
it
h
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
 t
o
 f
in
a
li
s
e
 

ta
rg
e
ts
 i
n
 t
h
re
e
 a
re
a
s
. 

  
9
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

o
r 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

B
a
s
e
li
n
e
 

L
A
A
 

 3
 Y
e
a
r 

T
a
rg
e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1
1
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

L
E
A
D
/c
o
n
tr
ib
u
to
ry
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

A
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

s
e
n
s
e
 o
f 

b
e
lo
n
g
in
g
 a
n
d
 

p
ri
d
e
 i
n
 l
o
c
a
l 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

th
a
t 
h
e
lp
 t
o
 b
u
ild
 

c
o
h
e
s
iv
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

A
g
re
e
d
 

N
I 
1
 P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 b
e
lie
v
e
 

p
e
o
p
le
 f
ro
m
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 

b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
s
 g
e
t 
o
n
 w
e
ll 

to
g
e
th
e
r 
in
 t
h
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
re
a
 

B
a
s
e
lin
e
 

to
 b
e
 s
e
t 

b
y
 2
0
0
8
 

P
la
c
e
 

S
u
rv
e
y
 

   

In
c
re
a
s
e
 o
f 
4
.1
%
 o
n
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 f
ig
u
re
. 

 
(M

e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
 P
la
c
e
 S
u
rv
e
y
 i
n
 A
u
tu
m
n
 2
0
1
0
) 

 

L
E
E
D
S
 C
IT
Y
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

 V
C
F
 b
o
d
ie
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 V
C
F
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 G
ro
u
p
 

 L
e
e
d
s
 P
C
T
 

 W
e
s
t 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 P
o
lic
e
 

 N
a
tu
ra
l 
E
n
g
la
n
d
  

 L
e
e
d
s
 C
o
n
fe
d
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

C
o
lle
g
e
s
 

 

 

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



Strategic Outcome
Accountable 

Director
Improvement Priority Accountable Officer Responsible Officer National Indicators / Local Indicators

Reduced ecological footprint 

through responding to 

environmental and climate change 

and influencing others. 

Jean Dent

Director of

City Development

Increase the amount of waste 

reused and recycled and reduce the 

amount of waste going to landfill

Neil Evans Director of 

Environment and 

Neighbourhoods

Andrew Mason Chief Officer 

Environmental Services

NI 192 Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, 

recycling and composting 

Cleaner, greener and more 

attractive city through effective 

environmental management and 

changed behaviours. 

Neil Evans Director

Environment & 

Neighbourhoods

Address neighbourhood problem 

sites; improve cleanliness and 

access to and quality of green 

spaces.

Andrew Mason Chief Officer 

Environmental Services

Steve Speak

Chief Strategy & Policy Officer 

Martin Farrington

Acting Chief Recreation Office

NI 195 Improved street and environmental cleanliness (levels 

of litter, detritus, graffiti and fly posting)

Increase the number of “decent 

homes”.

Stephen Boyle Chief Regeneration 

Officer

Steve Speak Chief Strategy & Policy 

Officer

Phil Crabtree Chief Planning Officer

NI 158 % non-decent council homes

Increase the number of affordable 

homes

Steve Speak

Chief Strategy and Policy Officer

Gary Bartlett Chief Officer Highways

Stephen Boyle Chief Regeneration 

Officer

Phil Crabtree Chief Planning & 

Development Services Officer

Paul Brook Chief Asset Management 

Officer

NI 154 Net additional homes provided

NI 155 Number of affordable homes delivered (gross)

Reduce the number of homeless 

people.

Stephen Boyle Chief Regeneration 

Officer  

      

Jim Willson Chief Officer Substance 

Use     

Andrew Mason Chief Environmental 

Services Officer             

LKI HAS4 The number of homeless acceptances made in the 

year. 

CP HAS50 Reduce the number of homeless people in Leeds 

per 1000 households, as defined by the Council.

Reduce the number of people who 

are not able to adequately heat their 

homes.

Andrew Mason Chief 

Environmental Services 

Officer

Steve Carey Acting Chief Officer 

Benefits & Revenues 

Paul Langford

Chief Housing Services Officer

Steve Speak Chief Strategy and Policy 

Officer

Paul Brook Chief Asset Management 

Officer

NI 187 Tackling fuel poverty – % of people receiving income 

based benefits living in homes with a low energy efficiency 

rating

Senior Management Accountabilities and Responsibilities aligned to the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11

Purpose of the document

To identify individuals in Leeds City Council who have lead Accountability and/or Responsibility for the Strategic Outcomes and Improvement Priorities in the 

Leeds Strategic Plan.

Note 1: At this stage individuals in partner agencies who have lead Accountability and/or Responsibility roles are not identified in this document, this information is 

being developed and will be part of this document at a later stage.

Note 2: Leeds City Council requires a lead or link individual on all targets and indicators that will deliver the Improvement Priorities as Leeds City Council is the 

overall accountable body for the Local Area Agreement requirements in the Leeds Strategic Plan.

Definition of Accountability and Responsibility are taken from RACI:

Responsible - individuals who perform an activity - responsible for action/implementation.  The degree of responsibility is defined by the accountable person,  R's 

can be shared.

Accountable - the individual who is ultimately accountable includes yes/no and power to veto.  Only one A can be assigned to an activity/decision.

The table assumes the following:

The Accountable Director is accountable for the Strategic Outcomes

The Accountable Officer is accountable for an Improvement Priority and linked national indicators 

The Responsible Officer is responsible for relevant areas of activity that contribute to the Improvement Priority and linked national indicators.

Improved quality of life through 

mixed neighbourhoods offering 

good housing options and better 

access to services and activities. 

Neil Evans Director

Environment & 

Neighbourhoods

Environment

Thriving Neighbourhoods

Paul Langford Chief 

Housing Services Officer

Page 23



Improved quality of life through 

mixed neighbourhoods offering 

good housing options and better 

access to services and activities. 

Neil Evans Director

Environment & 

Neighbourhoods

Increase financial inclusion in 

deprived areas.

Jean Dent Director of City 

Development

Steve Carey Acting Chief Officer 

Benefits & Revenues 

Stephen Boyle Chief Regeneration 

Officer

Steve Speak Chief Strategy and Policy 

Officer

Andrew Mason Chief Environmental 

Services Officer

Paul Stephens Chief Economic 

Services Officer

Catherine Blanshard  Chief Libraries , 

Arts & Heritage Officer

Sally Threlfall Chief Officer Early Years 

and Youth

Paddy Clarke Acting Chief Customer 

Services

Officer

Increase the number of new customers on low incomes 

accessing credit union services (savings, loans and current 

accounts).

Reduce offending by managing 

offending behaviour better

Richard Jackson Chief Officer - 

Community Safety

Edwina Harrison Chief Officer Children 

& Families

NI 30 Re-offending rate of prolific and priority offenders

A complete count of the number of first time entrants into the 

youth justice system receiving a substantive outcome between 

1 April and 31 March in the reporting year specified.

A complete count of offences committed by young people 

resulting in a substantive outcome during a bail or remand 

episode during the specified year

Improve lives by reducing the harm 

cuased by substance misuse

Neil Evans Director 

Environment & 

Neighbourhoods

Richard Jackson Chief Officer - 

Community Safety

Edwina Harrison Chief Officer Children 

& Families

Jim Willson Chief Officer Substance 

Use

NI 40 Number of drug users recorded as being in effective 

treatment 

To be developed around A&E admissions due to alcohol

An increased number of local 

people engaged in activities to meet 

community needs and improve the 

quality of life for local residents.

Martin Farrington

Acting Chief Recreation Office

Catherine Blanshard Chief Officer 

Libraries, Arts and Heritage

Andrew Mason Chief Environmental 

Services Officer   

                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

Paul Langford Chief Housing Officer  

Richard Jackson Chief Community 

Safety Officer  

Chief Officers from each Directorate

NI 110 Young People's participation in positive activities 

NI 6 Participation in regular volunteering

An increase in the number of local 

people that are empowered to have 

a greater voice and influence over 

local decision making and a greater 

role in public service delivery.

Sally Threlfall Chief Officer Early Years 

and Youth

Andrew Mason Chief Environmental 

Services Officer   

                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

Paul Langford Chief Housing Officer  

Richard Jackson Chief Community 

Safety Officer  

NI 4 Percentage of people who feel they can influence 

decisions in their locality

Harmonious communities

Neil Evans Director

Environment & 

Neighbourhoods

Create safer environments by 

tackling crime

More inclusive, varied and vibrant 

communities through empowering 

people to contribute to decision 

making an delivering local services

Neil Evans Director

Environment & 

Neighbourhoods

Stephen Boyle Chief 

Regeneration Officer

Richard Jackson

Chief Officer - Community Safety

Paul Langford Chief Housing Services 

Officer

Stephen Boyle Chief Regeneration 

Officer

Gary Bartlett Chief Officer Highways

Andrew Mason Chief Environmental 

Services Officer

Paul Stephens Chief Economic 

Services Officer

Nicole Jackson Assistant Chief 

Executive (Corporate Governance)

NI 16 Serious acquisitive crime rate

NI 20 Assault with injury crime rate

NI 24 Satisfaction with the way the police and local council 

dealt with anti-social behaviour 

Neil Evans Director 

Environment & 

Neighbourhoods

Reduced crime and fear of crime 

through prevention, detection, 

offender management and changed 

behaviours. 

Page 24



More inclusive, varied and vibrant 

communities through empowering 

people to contribute to decision 

making an delivering local services

Enable a robust and vibrant 

voluntary, community and faith 

sector to facilitate community 

activity and directly deliver services.

Sally Threlfall Chief Officer Early Years 

and Youth

Andrew Mason Chief Environmental 

Services Officer   

                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

Paul Langford Chief Housing Officer  

Richard Jackson Chief Community 

Safety Officer  

NI 7 Environment for a thriving third sector

Improved community cohesion and 

integration through meaningful 

involvement and valuing equality 

and diversity 

An increased sense of belonging 

and pride in local neighbourhoods 

that help to build cohesive 

communities.

Andrew Mason Chief Environmental 

Services Officer   

                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

Paul Langford Chief Housing Officer  

Richard Jackson Chief Community 

Safety Officer  

James Rogers Assistant Chief 

Executive

Chief Officers from each Directorate

NI 1 Percentage of people who believe people from different 

backgrounds get on well together in their local area 

Stephen Boyle Chief 

Regeneration Officer

Neil Evans Director

Environment & 

Neighbourhoods

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
A
c
ti
o
n
s
 2
0
0
8
  

 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 (
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
) 

 

Is
s
u
e
 

P
la
n
 w
it
h
in
 

w
h
ic
h
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

s
it
s
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 A
p
ri
l 
0
8
 

C
O
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 
R
A
G
 

s
ta
tu
s
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

L
a
c
k
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
 f
o
r 

re
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 s
e
tt
in
g
 o
f 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
ta
rg
e
ts
 a
n
d
 

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
. 

 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

P
la
n
 2
0
0
8
-1
1
 

N
e
w
 S
e
n
io
r 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m
e
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 c
o
re
 c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 g
re
a
te
r 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 p
ilo
te
d
 w
it
h
 D
ir
e
c
to
rs
 n
o
w
 

b
e
in
g
 r
o
lle
d
 o
u
t 
to
 C
h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
. 
M
id
d
le
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
s
c
h
e
m
e
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 f
o
r 

A
u
tu
m
n
 2
0
0
8
. 

 

L
o
rr
a
in
e
 H
a
lla
m
 

G
re
e
n
 

P
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

p
la
n
s
 w
a
s
 i
n
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
u
p
 

u
n
ti
l 
th
is
 y
e
a
r,
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 

e
m
b
e
d
d
in
g
 o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
u
lt
u
re
 i
s
 y
e
t 

to
 h
a
p
p
e
n
. 

 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

P
la
n
 2
0
0
8
-1
1
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 

h
e
ld
 F
e
b
/M
a
rc
h
 0
8
. 
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 i
n
 M
a
y
 0
8
 w
it
h
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 C
L
T
 

S
te
v
e
 C
lo
u
g
h
 

G
re
e
n
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

N
o
t 
y
e
t 
m
a
d
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 o
u
r 
ta
rg
e
t 
to
 

re
d
u
c
e
 w
o
rk
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
. 

 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

P
la
n
 2
0
0
8
-1
1
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 L
e
e
d
s
 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
* 

  

C
it
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 g
ro
u
p
 o
n
 w
o
rk
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
. 
T
a
rg
e
ts
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 

w
o
rk
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 L
A
A
. 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 g
ro
u
p
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
L
A
A
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

  

S
te
p
h
e
n
 B
o
y
le
 

  

G
re
e
n
 

Page 27



Is
s
u
e
 

P
la
n
 w
it
h
in
 

w
h
ic
h
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

s
it
s
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 A
p
ri
l 
0
8
 

C
O
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 
R
A
G
 

s
ta
tu
s
 

A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 

a
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 i
n
 

th
e
 m
o
re
 p
ro
s
p
e
ro
u
s
 a
re
a
s
 

o
f 
th
e
 c
it
y
. 

 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

P
la
n
 2
0
0
8
-1
1
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 L
e
e
d
s
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

2
0
0
5
/0
6
 –
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

E
m
e
rg
in
g
 R
S
S
 i
s
 s
e
tt
in
g
 m
o
re
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 

a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 t
a
rg
e
ts
..
 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 

lo
o
k
in
g
 t
o
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
l 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

re
fl
e
c
ti
n
g
 t
h
is
, 
o
n
c
e
 R
S
S
 a
d
o
p
te
d
. 

S
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ry
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 G
u
id
a
n
c
e
 w
h
ic
h
 

p
ro
v
id
e
s
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
is
 f
o
r 
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
n
g
 w
it
h
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
 i
s
 u
n
d
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
. 

P
a
u
l 
L
a
n
g
fo
rd
 

G
re
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
n
 m
o
v
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 s
lo
w
. 

 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

P
la
n
 2
0
0
8
-1
1
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 L
e
e
d
s
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

2
0
0
5
/0
6
 –
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 5
0
%
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 i
n
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
. 
 

T
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
re
 

in
v
a
ri
a
b
ly
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
 N
I1
4
1
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 L
A
A
 w
it
h
 a
 s
tr
e
tc
h
 t
a
rg
e
t 

o
f 
7
6
%
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 m
o
v
e
-o
n
s
 b
y
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 6
0
%
. 
 I
n
te
n
s
iv
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 h
a
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
N
I1
4
1
 f
ro
m
 5
5
%
 i
n
 Q
1
 

0
7
/0
8
 t
o
 6
4
%
 i
n
 Q
4
 0
7
/0
8
 a
n
d
 i
t 
is
 b
e
lie
v
e
d
 

th
a
t 
th
is
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
x
t 

th
re
e
 y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
e
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ri
v
a
te
 s
e
c
to
r 
le
a
s
e
d
 

te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 
T
E
A
S
, 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 c
o
m
p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 t
e
n
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 a
n
 

e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
la
c
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
b
e
in
g
 a
b
le
 t
o
 

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
y
 w
ill
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

ta
rg
e
t 
to
 r
e
d
u
c
e
  
te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

 

P
a
u
l 
L
a
n
g
fo
rd
 

G
re
e
n
 

Page 28



Is
s
u
e
 

P
la
n
 w
it
h
in
 

w
h
ic
h
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

s
it
s
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 A
p
ri
l 
0
8
 

C
O
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 
R
A
G
 

s
ta
tu
s
 

R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
’ 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
o
n
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 i
s
 

b
o
tt
o
m
 q
u
a
rt
ile
 a
n
d
 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 f
a
lle
n
 

s
te
e
p
ly
 a
m
o
n
g
s
t 
th
e
 B
M
E
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

P
la
n
 2
0
0
8
-1
1
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 L
e
e
d
s
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

2
0
0
5
/0
6
 –
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
d
e
c
re
a
s
e
d
 B
M
E
 t
e
n
a
n
t 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 a
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 B
V
 U
s
e
r 

S
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 S
u
rv
e
y
 2
0
0
6
, 
a
 m
o
re
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 

s
u
rv
e
y
 o
n
 B
M
E
 t
e
n
a
n
ts
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 i
n
 A
u
g
 0
8
. 
 

T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

te
n
a
n
ts
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
 i
n
 2
0
0
8
, 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
 i
n
 e
a
rl
y
 2
0
0
9
. 

 

P
a
u
l 
L
a
n
g
fo
rd
 

G
re
e
n
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 S
a
fe
r 
a
n
d
 S
tr
o
n
g
e
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

C
ri
m
e
, 
a
n
d
 f
e
a
r 
o
f 
c
ri
m
e
, 

re
m
a
in
s
 h
ig
h
 w
h
e
n
 

c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
. 

 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

P
la
n
 2
0
0
8
-1
1
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 S
a
fe
r 

L
e
e
d
s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

P
la
n
 2
0
0
8
-1
1
 

S
a
fe
r 
L
e
e
d
s
 h
a
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

p
la
n
 2
0
0
8
/1
1
 w
it
h
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
8
/9
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t
o
 

re
d
u
c
e
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 a
c
q
u
is
it
iv
e
 c
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
  

v
io
le
n
t 
c
ri
m
e
 w
h
ils
t 
im
p
ro
v
in
g
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
lic
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
. 

 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 J
a
c
k
s
o
n
 

G
re
e
n
 

* 
P
la
n
s
 i
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 
Report of the Head of Policy, Performance and Improvement 
 
Meeting: Environment and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Board 
 
Date:  16th June 2008 
 
Subject:  Performance Report Quarter 4 2007/08 
 

        
 
 
1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report discusses the key performance issues considered to be of corporate significance 
identified for each of the Directorates as at 31st March 2008.   

2 Purpose of the Report 
 
2.1 The purpose of this report is to highlight key performance issues at the end of Quarter 4 (1st 

January to 31st March 2008) and to provide additional contextual information where relevant. 
 
3 Background Information 
 
3.1 This ‘highlight report’ has been prepared following the Accountability process, which includes 

the CLT meeting on 20th May and Leader Management Team on 22nd May 2008. Separate 
reports have been prepared for each of the scrutiny boards. 

 
3.2 Scrutiny board arrangements have been slightly amended this year which has meant that 

performance information has had to be split differently between boards.  For some PI’s this split 
is not straightforward, for example, is teenage conception a health issue or a children’s issue?  
For this reason we have decided for quarter 4 to report such indicators to both relevant boards.  
As the new arrangements bed-in greater clarity may emerge, although in theory there would 
appear to be no reason why dual reporting could not continue. 

 
3.3 The issues discussed in this report have been identified because performance in these areas 

impacts upon one or more of the following; the delivery of effective services, the delivery of our 
corporate priorities; our CPA score; or our ability to deliver efficiency savings.  This report is 
supported by detailed PI information.  

 
 
 
 

4 Directorate Performance Issues 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: 
Steve Clough 
Tel:  74582 

Page 31



 2 

 
4.3 Environment and Neighbourhoods 
 
Waste Management (BV82a-d and BV-84a-b) 
 
2007/08 has been a very successful year in terms of the reducing, reusing and recycling Leeds’ 
waste. The proportion of waste recycled or composted has risen from 22.3% in 2006/07 to 25.9% in 
2007/08 (BV-82A&B). Over 10,000 tonnes more waste has been recycled or composted than in 
2006/07. This is largely due to the pilots of garden waste collection delivering nearly 3,500 tonnes of 
green waste (36% more than we originally estimated), an increase in the amount of glass collected at 
bring banks (up 18% year on year) and an increase in the amount of recycling collected at the 
kerbside of over 2,200 tonnes (up 9% year on year). 
 
This has had a positive affect on the proportion of waste sent to landfill, with 73.7% of waste being 
landfilled (BV-82d), compared to 77.1% in 2006/07. Effectively, 17,042 tonnes less waste was sent to 
landfill in 2007/08 compared to the previous year (equivalent to the weight of more than 2,400 
double-decker buses).  
 
The total amount of waste being created in the first place has also decreased, from 467kg per head 
of population to 440kg per head in 2007/08 (BV-84b). Some of this reduction is due to an increase in 
population figures, however the overall amount of waste arising has also reduced by 7,700 tonnes 
year on year (a 2.3% reduction year on year).  
 
Homelessness Prevention (inc. Sanctuary scheme performance) 
 
Homeless prevention performance continues to show significant improvements and this year’s 
targets have been exceeded. This is due to a variety of prevention measures and improvements to 
services.  A key contributory factor has been the success of the Sanctuary scheme which has 
benefited over 300 households which is far in excess of the 250 target for 2007/08.  Through this 
scheme a range of security measures are installed in a person’s property, including an emergency 
alarm so that they can make contact with the police in an emergency situation.  The scheme provides 
families with a way of avoiding the disruptive effects of leaving their homes and entering the 
homelessness process.  It should be noted that, of the 305 sanctuary installations carried out in 
2007/08, only 15 recipients of the service subsequently made a homeless application, suggesting a 
high impact on preventing homelessness.  The number of individuals and families in temporary 
accommodation has come down and has been stabilised, however, there is an anticipated pressure 
emerging as a result of the Government’s drive to resolve a significant number of asylum cases 
which will need careful management over the coming weeks.  
 
Decency (184a and b) 
 
Council house decency continues to improve and ALMOs are on target to deliver decency by 
2010/11.  In 2007/8 a further £165.4m (provisional figure) was spent on capital investment to council 
houses in Leeds. As a result of this and previous investment, nearly 78% of council houses in Leeds 
met the government’s decent homes standard at 31 March 2008.  A further £110.9m investment is 
planned on council houses in 2008/9.  It is estimated that, by 31 March 2009, 85% of council houses 
will meet the government’s decent homes standard. 
 
Rents (BV66a) 
Performance has dropped slightly since last year and continues to give cause for concern, although 
we have managed to maintain a CPA mid threshold position in 2007/08.    Strategic Landlord is 
planning to work with ALMOs to identify and accurately diagnose performance issues, including local 
variations in practice and performance and learn from best practice and high performing authorities, 
with a view to driving up performance across the board.   
 

5 Recommendation 

That Members note the content of this report and comment on any particular performance issues of 
concern. 
 

Page 32



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 -
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
0
7
/0
8

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
9

1
0

1
1

1
1
a

1
2

1
3

1
4

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

&
 

M
e

a
s
u

re

G
o

o
d

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 

T
a

rg
e

t

F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 

R
e

s
u

lt

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 Y
e

a
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

T
re

n
d

 

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

B
o

tt
o

m
 

Q
u

a
rt

ile
 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

d
a

ta
)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

p
o

s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o

p

8
 =

 B
o

tt
o

m

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

d
a

ta
)

D
a

ta
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Is
s
u

e
s

1

B
V

-1
2

6

D
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 b

u
rg

la
ri
e

s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

S
a

fe
ty

M
o

n
th

ly

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
F

a
ll

2
5

.4
2

2
.3

2
6

.0
↓

5
.8

1
3

.2
2

7
.1

5
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

2

B
V

-1
2

7
 a

V
io

le
n

t 
c
ri
m

e
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r,

 1
0

0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
.

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

S
a

fe
ty

M
o

n
th

ly

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
F

a
ll

2
3

.8
2

2
.9

2
1

.6
↑

1
3

.1
2

2
.9

3
2

.8
2

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

3

B
V

-1
2

7
 b

R
o

b
b

e
ri
e

s
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r,

 p
e

r 
1

0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
.

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

S
a

fe
ty

M
o

n
th

ly

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
F

a
ll

2
.3

2
.2

2
.1

↑
0

.3
1

.3
4

.1
3

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

4

B
V

-1
2

8

V
e

h
ic

le
 c

ri
m

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

S
a

fe
ty

M
o

n
th

ly

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
F

a
ll

1
7

.3
1

6
.5

1
4

.3
↑

7
.0

1
3

.9
2

3
.6

2
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

5

B
V

-1
7

4

C
P

-C
S

1
T

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

ra
c
ia

l 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 p
e

r 
1

0
0

,0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

S
a

fe
ty

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
R

is
e

1
8

3
.5

1
2

5
6

.9
4

2
3

6
.3

0
↑

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
o

m
e

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

6

B
V

-1
7

5

C
P

A
-H

1
9

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
ra

c
ia

l 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 t

h
a

t 
re

s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

a
c
ti
o

n
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

S
a

fe
ty

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

9
3

.9
7

9
8

.0
0

9
8

.9
0

↑
1

0
0

.0
0

1
0

0
.0

0
9

7
.8

1
3

S
o

m
e

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

7

B
V

-2
2

5
A

c
ti
o

n
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 (
D

V
) 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
L

A
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 

v
ic

ti
m

s
 o

f 
D

V
 a

n
d

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

D
V

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

S
a

fe
ty

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

1
0

0
.0

1
0

0
.0

1
0

0
.0

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

T
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
.

In
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
, 

th
e

re
 w

e
re

 1
7

1
1

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 r

a
c
ia

l 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

; 
th

is
 i
s
 a

 2
9

%
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r,
 e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t 
to

 3
8

4
 m

o
re

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
.

In
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
to

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 o

f 
ra

c
ia

l 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 s
h

o
w

s
 a

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t.

  
In

 2
0

0
7

/0
8

, 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 L

e
e

d
s
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 1

1
6

7
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 w
it
h

 9
9

3
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r 
(u

p
 1

7
.5

%
) 

a
n

d
 L

C
C

 d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 5

4
4

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 w
it
h

 

3
3

4
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r 
(u

p
 6

3
%

).

T
h

e
 m

a
in

 r
e

a
s
o

n
 w

h
y
 t

h
is

 t
a

rg
e

t 
h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 i
s
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
y
 o

f 
tu

rn
in

g
 p

o
lic

y
 i
n

to
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 w
h

o
le

 o
f 

th
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

. 
  

D
e

s
p

it
e

 t
h

is
, 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 g

re
a

te
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

o
lla

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
u

ra
c
y
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 t

o
 

th
e

ir
 r

e
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

te
a

m
s
, 

th
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 s
e

ri
e

s
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g

 s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

Q
/A

 c
h

e
c
k
s
 h

a
v
e

 h
e

lp
e

d
 t

o
 s

e
e

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 i
n

c
re

m
e

n
ta

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r.

T
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
.

In
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
, 

o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l 
1

7
1

1
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 r
a

c
ia

l 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 9
8

.9
%

 r
e

s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

a
c
ti
o

n
. 

 A
c
ro

s
s
 L

C
C

 d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
is

 w
a

s
 1

0
0

%
.

T
h

is
 r

e
a

s
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
is

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
 p

a
rt

ia
lly

 e
x
p

la
in

e
d

 b
y
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
n

d
 Q

/A
 c

h
e

c
k
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e

 y
e

a
r.

In
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
, 

th
e

re
 w

e
re

 8
,4

4
9

 r
e

c
o

rd
e

d
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 b

u
rg

la
ri
e

s
; 

a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

2
.5

%
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r,
 (

2
0

5
 m

o
re

 o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
) 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

re
n

d
s
 s

h
o

w
 a

 -
4

8
.3

%
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 2

0
0

2
/0

3
 p

e
a

k
 o

f 
1

6
,3

4
1

 (
7

,8
9

2
 f

e
w

e
r 

o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
).

 T
h

e
 r

e
a

s
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 s
lig

h
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r 
a

re
 

u
n

c
le

a
r 

b
u

t 
a

p
p

e
a

r 
to

 h
a

v
e

 f
o

llo
w

e
d

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
tr

e
n

d
s
 a

n
d

 c
a

n
 b

e
 l
in

k
e

d
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 p

ri
s
o

n
 r

e
le

a
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

ro
lif

ic
 o

ff
e

n
d

e
rs

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
. 

T
h

is
 h

a
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 t

h
e

 P
o

lic
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 P
ro

b
a

ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 m
o

re
 o

ff
e

n
d

e
rs

 r
e

s
id

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 a
c
ti
v
e

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

 

A
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

3
%

 o
f 

b
u

rg
la

ry
 v

ic
ti
m

s
 a

re
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 (

b
a

s
e

d
 u

p
o

n
 c

o
m

p
la

in
a

n
t 

c
o

d
in

g
-2

2
%

 i
n

 N
o

rt
h

 W
e

s
t 

L
e

e
d

s
 r

e
fl
e

c
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
).

 I
n

c
re

a
s
e

s
 i
n

 s
tu

d
e

n
t 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 

fe
w

 y
e

a
rs

 h
a

s
 b

ro
u

g
h

t 
a

 l
a

rg
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 i
n

to
 h

ig
h

 c
ri
m

e
 a

re
a

s
 a

n
d

 

th
e

re
b

y
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

o
ff

e
n

d
e

rs
 t

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

th
o

s
e

 a
t 

ri
s
k
. 

 L
C

C
 i
s
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

 I
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 O

ff
e

n
d

e
r 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
, 

b
u

ild
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

D
ru

g
 I

n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 a
n

d
 P

ro
lif

ic
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

P
ri
o

ri
ty

 O
ff

e
n

d
e

rs
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

im
 

o
f 

a
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
n

g
 t

o
 o

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r.

  
A

 b
u

rg
la

ry
 p

ro
b

le
m

 p
ro

fi
le

 w
ill

 b
e

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 i
n

 J
u

n
e

 0
8

, 
id

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 i
n

to
 s

tu
d

e
n

t 
a

re
a

s
 w

it
h

in
 

c
o

re
 c

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
p

a
ri
s
o

n
 o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

D
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 b

u
rg

la
ry

 r
e

m
a

in
s
 a

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 (
L

P
S

A
 2

) 
a

n
d

 i
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

e
ri
o

u
s
 a

c
q

u
is

it
iv

e
 c

ri
m

e
 t

a
rg

e
t,

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 L

A
A

.

T
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 e

x
c
e

e
d

e
d

.

In
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
, 

th
e

re
 w

e
re

 1
5

,6
0

5
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
 v

io
le

n
t 

c
ri
m

e
s
, 

th
is

 i
s
 d

o
w

n
 9

.5
%

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r,
 e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t 
to

 1
6

3
9

 f
e

w
e

r 
o

ff
e

n
c
e

s
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
a

s
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
is

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
 p

a
rt

ia
lly

 e
x
p

la
in

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 e
ff

e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 p
o

lic
e

 p
o

lic
y
 f

o
r 

e
a

rl
y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 t

o
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

lo
w

 l
e

v
e

l 
v
io

le
n

c
e

 e
s
c
a

la
ti
n

g
 t

o
 m

o
re

 s
e

ri
o

u
s
 a

tt
a

c
k
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e

 T
a

c
k
lin

g
 V

io
le

n
t 

C
ri
m

e
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 -
 e

x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
g

o
o

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 

fr
o

m
 t

h
is

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
.

T
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 e

x
c
e

e
d

e
d

.

In
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
, 

th
e

re
 w

e
re

 1
,4

9
0

 r
e

c
o

rd
e

d
 r

o
b

b
e

ri
e

s
, 

th
is

 i
s
 d

o
w

n
 9

.2
%

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r,
 e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t 
to

 1
5

1
 f

e
w

e
r 

o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
.

T
h

e
 r

e
a

s
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
is

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
 p

a
rt

ia
lly

 e
x
p

la
in

e
d

 b
y
 a

 p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

 p
o

lic
in

g
 i
n

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
m

o
s
t 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 u

s
e

 o
f 

ta
c
ti
c
s
 d

e
p

lo
y
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 S

tr
e

e
t 

C
ri
m

e
 I

n
it
ia

ti
v
e

. 

T
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 e

x
c
e

e
d

e
d

.

In
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
, 

th
e

re
 w

e
re

 1
0

,3
5

0
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
 v

e
h

ic
le

 c
ri
m

e
s
, 

th
is

 i
s
 d

o
w

n
 1

7
.2

%
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r,
 e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t 
to

 2
1

5
5

 f
e

w
e

r 
o

ff
e

n
c
e

s
. 

T
h

e
ft

 o
f 

m
o

to
r 

v
e

h
ic

le
 =

 2
,8

7
1

 d
o

w
n

 1
3

.7
%

 (
4

5
5

 f
e

w
e

r 
o

ff
e

n
c
e

s
).

  
T

h
e

ft
 f

ro
m

 m
o

to
r 

v
e

h
ic

le
s
 =

 7
,4

7
9

 d
o

w
n

 1
8

.5
%

 (
1

7
0

0
 f

e
w

e
r 

o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
).

T
h

e
 r

e
a

s
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
is

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
 p

a
rt

ia
lly

 e
x
p

la
in

e
d

 b
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 v
e

h
ic

le
 s

e
c
u

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 b

y
 v

e
h

ic
le

 c
ri
m

e
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

s
 r

a
is

in
g

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
ri
s
k
s
 t

o
 v

e
h

ic
le

 o
w

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 h
e

lp
 t

h
e

m
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
ir
 r

is
k
 o

f 
b

e
c
o

m
in

g
 a

 v
ic

ti
m

 o
f 

v
e

h
ic

le
 c

ri
m

e
. 

1

Page 33



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 -
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
0
7
/0
8

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

&
 

M
e

a
s
u

re

G
o

o
d

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 

T
a

rg
e

t

F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 

R
e

s
u

lt

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 Y
e

a
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

T
re

n
d

 

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

B
o

tt
o

m
 

Q
u

a
rt

ile
 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

d
a

ta
)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

p
o

s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o

p

8
 =

 B
o

tt
o

m

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

d
a

ta
)

D
a

ta
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Is
s
u

e
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

8

C
P

-C
S

3

L
A

A
-S

S
C

1
9

In
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 f

e
e

l 
th

a
t 

th
e

y
 b

e
lo

n
g

 t
o

 t
h

e
ir
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

re
a

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

S
a

fe
ty

S
u

rv
e

y

%
R

is
e

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

7
2

.0
0

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
o

m
e

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

9

C
P

-C
S

4

In
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 f

e
e

l 
th

e
y
 c

a
n

 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 a

ff
e

c
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

ir
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

re
a

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

S
a

fe
ty

S
u

rv
e

y

%
R

is
e

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

3
3

.0
0

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

1
0

C
P

-C
S

5
0

L
A

A
-S

S
C

8
 

P
S

A
1

R
e

d
u

c
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

c
ri
m

e
 l
e

v
e

ls
 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s
 b

y
 3

5
%

 b
y
 2

0
0

8
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

S
a

fe
ty

M
o

n
th

ly

%
F

a
ll

-2
3

.6
0

-3
5

.0
0

-3
2

.0
0

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

1
1

C
P

-C
S

5
1

a
i

L
A

A
-S

S
C

1
8

a
R

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
 f

e
a

r 
o

f 
c
ri
m

e
 b

y
:

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 %
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 s
u

rv
e

y
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
fe

e
l 
s
a

fe
 w

a
lk

in
g

 a
lo

n
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 a

re
a

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 d
a

y

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

S
a

fe
ty

S
u

rv
e

y

%
R

is
e

7
8

.0
0

N
.A

.
9

4
.0

0
↑

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
o

m
e

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

1
2

C
P

-C
S

5
1

a
ii

L
A

A
-S

S
C

1
8

b
R

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
 f

e
a

r 
o

f 
c
ri
m

e
 b

y
:

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 %
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 s
u

rv
e

y
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
fe

e
l 
s
a

fe
 w

a
lk

in
g

 a
lo

n
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 a

re
a

 a
ft

e
r 

d
a

rk

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

S
a

fe
ty

S
u

rv
e

y

%
R

is
e

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

5
8

.0
0

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
o

m
e

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

1
3

C
P

-C
S

5
1

c

L
A

A
-S

S
C

2
9

C
R

e
d

u
c
e

 p
e

o
p

le
's

 p
e

rc
e

p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

S
B

 -
 R

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 t

h
in

k
 p

e
o

p
le

 u
s
in

g
 o

r 

d
e

a
lin

g
 d

ru
g

s
 a

re
 a

 v
e

ry
 o

r 
fa

ir
ly

 b
ig

 p
ro

b
le

m

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

S
a

fe
ty

A
n

n
u

a
lly

%
F

a
ll

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

2
4

.3
0

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
o

m
e

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

1
4

C
P

-C
S

5
1

d
 

(A
m

e
n

d
e

d
)

R
e

d
u

c
e

 p
e

o
p

le
's

 p
e

rc
e

p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

S
B

 -
 R

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 t

h
in

k
 p

e
o

p
le

 b
e

in
g

 d
ru

n
k
 o

r 

ro
w

d
y
 i
n

 p
u

b
lic

 s
p

a
c
e

s
 a

re
 a

 v
e

ry
 o

r 
fa

ir
ly

 b
ig

 p
ro

b
le

m

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

S
a

fe
ty

A
n

n
u

a
lly

%
F

a
ll

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

2
0

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

1
5

C
P

-S
C

5
1

b

L
A

A
-S

S
C

1
6

a
R

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
 f

e
a

r 
o

f 
c
ri
m

e
 b

y
:

b
) 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 t

h
e

 %
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 f
e

e
l 
th

a
t 

a
n

ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

is
 a

 v
e

ry
 b

ig
 p

ro
b

le
m

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 a

re
a

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

S
a

fe
ty

S
u

rv
e

y

%
R

is
e

1
7

N
.A

.
S

e
e

 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

F
ig

u
re

 t
a

k
e

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 2

0
0

6
 B

e
s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 
S

u
rv

e
y
, 

q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
 3

4
.

T
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

w
a

s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 i
n

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

 -
 a

ll 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

m
a

in
e

d
 i
n

 f
o

rc
e

 i
n

 2
0

0
7

/0
8

N
.A

.

N
.A

.

T
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

3
5

%
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
a

 3
2

%
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 t

h
e

 b
e

s
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 t
h

a
t 

L
e

e
d

s
 h

a
s
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
.

T
h

e
 P

S
A

 1
 t

a
rg

e
t 

m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 t

h
e

 m
a

in
 o

ff
e

n
c
e

s
 u

s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 C
ri
m

e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
re

c
o

rd
e

d
 o

ff
e

n
c
e

s
 i
n

 2
0

0
3

/0
4

. 
 

In
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
, 

th
e

re
 w

e
re

 5
3

,4
0

1
 P

S
A

 1
 o

ff
e

n
c
e

s
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 w
it
h

 7
8

,5
7

3
 o

ff
e

n
c
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

a
s
e

lin
e

 y
e

a
r 

o
f 

2
0

0
3

/0
4

. 
 T

h
e

 3
2

%
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t 
to

 2
5

,1
7

2
 f

e
w

e
r 

o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
. 

 A
re

a
s
 o

f 
s
tr

o
n

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 

4
 y

e
a

rs
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 t

h
e

ft
 o

f 
m

o
to

r 

v
e

h
ic

le
 d

o
w

n
 5

4
.4

%
, 

th
e

ft
 f

ro
m

 m
o

to
r 

v
e

h
ic

le
 d

o
w

n
 3

5
.1

%
, 

th
e

ft
 f

ro
m

 p
e

rs
o

n
 d

o
w

n
 3

1
.6

%
, 

p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
ro

b
b

e
ry

 d
o

w
n

 1
5

.2
%

, 
c
ri
m

in
a

l 
d

a
m

a
g

e
 d

o
w

n
 1

4
.3

%
 a

n
d

 w
o

u
n

d
in

g
 d

o
w

n
 1

4
.1

%
. 

 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
re

a
s
o

n
s
 w

h
y
 t

h
is

 t
a

rg
e

t 
h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 r
is

in
g

 t
re

n
d

 i
n

 d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 b

u
rg

la
ry

 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
a

s
t 

1
8

 m
o

n
th

s
 a

n
d

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 r
e

c
o

rd
in

g
 a

n
d

 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

to
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 a

s
s
a

u
lt
s
 (

p
o

w
e

r 
o

f 
a

rr
e

s
t)

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a

v
e

 o
ff

s
e

t 
th

e
 e

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

o
th

e
r 

c
ri
m

e
 t

y
p

e
s
. 

A
s
 a

t 
D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7

 L
e

e
d

s
 w

a
s
 t

h
e

 s
e

c
o

n
d

 b
e

s
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 C

D
R

P
.

N
.A

.

N
.A

.

N
.A

.

N
o

 C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 S

u
p

p
lie

d

2

Page 34



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 -
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
0
7
/0
8

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

&
 

M
e

a
s
u

re

G
o

o
d

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 

T
a

rg
e

t

F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 

R
e

s
u

lt

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 Y
e

a
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

T
re

n
d

 

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

B
o

tt
o

m
 

Q
u

a
rt

ile
 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

d
a

ta
)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

p
o

s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o

p

8
 =

 B
o

tt
o

m

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

d
a

ta
)

D
a

ta
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Is
s
u

e
s

1
6

L
K

I-
C

S
6

L
A

A
-S

S
C

2
9

a
T

o
ta

l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
d

ru
g

 u
s
e

rs
 i
n

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

S
a

fe
ty

M
o

n
th

ly

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
R

is
e

3
,8

7
9

3
,7

2
7

3
,5

5
4

↓
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

1
7

L
K

I-
C

S
7

L
A

A
-S

S
C

2
9

b
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
d

ru
g

 u
s
e

rs
 r

e
ta

in
e

d
 i
n

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
fo

r 
1

2
 w

e
e

k
s
 o

r 
m

o
re

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

S
a

fe
ty

M
o

n
th

ly

%
R

is
e

7
9

8
5

7
8

↓
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

1
8

L
K

I-
C

S
8

a

L
A

A
-S

S
C

1
3

 

L
P

S
A

2
A

d
d

re
s
s
in

g
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 b
y
: 

  
 a

) 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

S
a

fe
ty

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
R

is
e

1
1

,1
8

0
1

2
,5

0
0

9
,3

0
5

↓
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

1
9

L
K

I-
C

S
8

b

L
A

A
-S

S
C

1
4

 

L
P

S
A

2

A
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 b
y
: 

b
) 

re
d

u
c
e

 r
e

p
e

a
t 

v
ic

ti
m

is
a

ti
o

n
 a

s
 a

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n

c
e

 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

S
a

fe
ty

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
F

a
ll

4
8

.2
0

4
4

.8
0

4
6

.1
0

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

2
0

L
K

I-
C

S
8

c

L
A

A
-S

S
C

1
5

 

L
P

S
A

2

A
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 b
y
: 

 c
) 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 t
h

a
t 

re
s
u

lt
 i
n

 a
 s

a
n

c
ti
o

n
e

d
 d

e
te

c
ti
o

n

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

S
a

fe
ty

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

1
6

.2
0

1
6

.0
0

2
1

.9
0

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

T
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
.

In
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
, 

th
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

d
ru

g
 u

s
e

rs
 r

e
ta

in
e

d
 i
n

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
fo

r 
1

2
 w

e
e

k
s
 o

r 
m

o
re

 w
a

s
 7

8
%

, 
ju

s
t 

1
%

 b
e

lo
w

  
th

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r,
 t

h
is

 s
lig

h
t 

d
e

c
lin

e
  

is
 r

e
fl
e

c
ti
v
e

 o
f 

th
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
tr

e
n

d
. 

 W
a

it
in

g
 t

im
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 d
is

c
h

a
rg

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 s
h

o
w

n
 a

n
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 w

it
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 o
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

c
a

re
 p

la
n

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

fe
rr

a
l 
p

a
th

w
a

y
s
.

T
h

is
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 L
A

A
 w

it
h

 a
 n

e
w

 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 d

ru
g

 u
s
e

rs
 i
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t.

T
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
.

In
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
, 

th
e

re
 w

e
re

 9
,3

0
5

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

; 
th

is
 i
s
 d

o
w

n
 1

6
.8

%
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r,
 e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t 
to

 1
8

7
5

 f
e

w
e

r 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

.

T
h

e
 r

e
a

s
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 f
a

ll 
in

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 a

re
 u

n
c
le

a
r 

b
u

t 
a

p
p

e
a

r 
to

 h
a

v
e

 f
o

llo
w

e
d

 r
e

g
io

n
a

l 
tr

e
n

d
s
. 

D
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 i
s
 h

u
g

e
ly

 u
n

d
e

r 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

a
n

 i
s
s
u

e
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
. 

 A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

, 
fi
n

d
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
 b

y
 S

a
fe

r 
L

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 h

a
v
e

 

b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
. 

  
T

h
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

fr
e

s
h

e
d

 D
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

0
8

/0
9

. 
 

D
u

ri
n

g
 Q

1
 o

f 
th

is
 y

e
a

r 
S

a
fe

r 
L

e
e

d
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

x
p

lo
ri
n

g
 s

tr
a

te
g

ie
s
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 v
ic

ti
m

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 P

o
lic

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

, 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 L

P
S

A
 s

tr
e

tc
h

in
g

 t
a

rg
e

t.
 

T
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
.

In
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
, 

th
e

re
 w

e
re

 9
,3

0
5

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 4
,2

8
6

 w
e

re
 r

e
p

e
a

ts
. 

A
n

a
ly

s
is

 s
h

o
w

s
 a

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

e
a

t 
v
ic

ti
m

is
a

ti
o

n
 a

s
 a

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 4
8

.2
%

 i
n

 0
6

/0
7

 t
o

 4
6

.1
%

 i
n

 0
7

/0
8

.

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

, 
fi
n

d
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
 b

y
 S

a
fe

r 
L

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
. 

  
T

h
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

fr
e

s
h

e
d

 D
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 

V
io

le
n

c
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

0
8

/0
9

. 
 

T
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
.

In
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
, 

th
e

re
 w

e
re

 3
,5

5
4

 d
ru

g
 u

s
e

rs
 i
n

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t;
 t

h
is

 i
s
 5

.6
%

 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a

n
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r.

T
h

e
 r

e
a

s
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 c
a

n
 b

e
 p

a
rt

ia
lly

 e
x
p

la
in

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 f
a

c
t 

th
a

t 
a

 d
a

ta
 c

le
a

n
s
in

g
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 (

B
e

tw
e

e
n

 A
p

ri
l 
0

6
 a

n
d

 M
a

rc
h

 0
7

) 
re

m
o

v
e

d
 2

0
8

3
 f

ro
m

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 i
n

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t.
  

L
e

e
d

s
 A

d
d

ic
ti
o

n
 U

n
it
 s

h
o

w
e

d
 1

9
0

6
 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0

6
 w

it
h

 a
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 4

6
7

 i
n

 M
a

y
 2

0
0

6
, 

a
 t

o
ta

l 
o

f 
1

4
3

9
. 

 

M
u

lt
ip

le
 C

h
o

ic
e

 s
h

o
w

e
d

 1
0

4
9

 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0

6
 w

it
h

 a
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 4

0
5

 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
7

, 
a

 t
o

ta
l 
o

f 
6

4
4

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

n
e

w
 p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

y
 5

.2
%

 f
o

rm
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r 
(1

1
4

5
 i
n

 0
6

/0
7

 a
n

d
 1

2
0

4
 i
n

 0
7

/0
8

)

T
h

e
 d

a
ta

 v
e

ri
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
s
u

e
 f

ro
m

 t
w

o
 m

a
in

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 a
t 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
0

6
/0

7
 h

in
d

e
re

d
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
s
e

tt
in

g
 f

o
r 

0
7

/0
8

; 
th

is
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
a

c
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
a

rg
e

t.

T
h

is
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 L
A

A
 w

it
h

 a
 n

e
w

 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 d

ru
g

 u
s
e

rs
 i
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t.
 

T
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
.

In
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
, 

th
e

re
 w

a
s
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 t

h
a

t 
re

s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 s
a

n
c
ti
o

n
 d

e
te

c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 2

1
.9

%
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 w
it
h

 1
6

.2
%

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r.

T
h

e
 r

e
a

s
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
is

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 b
y
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 a

tt
e

n
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
is

 P
I 

b
y
 t

h
e

 P
o

lic
e

.

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

, 
fi
n

d
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
 b

y
 S

a
fe

r 
L

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
. 

  
T

h
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

fr
e

s
h

e
d

 D
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 

V
io

le
n

c
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

0
8

/0
9

. 
 

3

Page 35



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 -
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
0
7
/0
8

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

&
 

M
e

a
s
u

re

G
o

o
d

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 

T
a

rg
e

t

F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 

R
e

s
u

lt

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 Y
e

a
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

T
re

n
d

 

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

B
o

tt
o

m
 

Q
u

a
rt

ile
 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

d
a

ta
)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

p
o

s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o

p

8
 =

 B
o

tt
o

m

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

d
a

ta
)

D
a

ta
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Is
s
u

e
s

2
1

B
V

-1
6

6
a

C
P

A
-E

2
7

S
c
o

re
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
 c

h
e

c
k
lis

t 
o

f 
e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

b
e

s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 f
o

r 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

H
e

a
lt
h

A
n

n
u

a
lly

%
R

is
e

9
6

.7
0

9
6

.7
0

9
6

.7
0

↔
1

0
0

.0
0

9
0

.0
0

9
8

.5
0

2
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

2
2

B
V

-1
6

6
b

C
P

A
-E

2
1

S
c
o

re
 o

u
t 

o
f 

1
0

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
 c

h
e

c
k
lis

t 
o

f 
e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

b
e

s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 f
o

r 
tr

a
d

in
g

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

H
e

a
lt
h

A
n

n
u

a
lly

%
R

is
e

1
0

0
.0

0
1

0
0

.0
0

1
0

0
.0

0
↑

1
0

0
.0

0
1

0
0

.0
0

9
9

.4
0

1
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

2
3

B
V

-2
1

7

C
P

-E
N

5
1

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

p
o

llu
ti
o

n
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 i
n

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 o
n

 t
im

e
.

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

H
e

a
lt
h

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

9
9

9
0

9
7

↓
1

0
0

9
3

9
4

2
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

2
4

L
K

I-
E

H
3

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
fo

o
d

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

th
a

t 
w

e
re

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

fo
r 

h
ig

h
-r

is
k
 p

re
m

is
e

s

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

H
e

a
lt
h

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

5
2

.0
1

0
0

.0
1

0
0

.0
↑

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

2
5

L
K

I-
E

H
8

C
P

A
-H

1
8

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

p
ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
h

o
m

e
s
 v

a
c
a

n
t 

fo
r 

m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 6

 m
o

n
th

s
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

H
e

a
lt
h

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
F

a
ll

2
.3

9
2

.6
9

2
.9

4
↓

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
o

m
e

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

2
6

B
V

-1
8

3
b

C
P

A
-H

1
5

T
h

e
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 l
e

n
g

th
 o

f 
s
ta

y
 i
n

 h
o

s
te

l 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 d
e

p
e

n
d

a
n

t 
c
h

ild
re

n
 o

r 

a
 p

re
g

n
a

n
t 

w
o

m
a

n
 w

h
o

 a
re

 u
n

in
te

n
ti
o

n
a

lly
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

n
d

 i
n

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 n
e

e
d

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
 a

n
d

 

A
d

v
is

o
ry

 

S
e

rv
ic

e

M
o

n
th

ly

W
e

e
k
s

F
a

ll
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
↑

0
.0

1
4

.1
6

.2
1

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

2
7

B
V

-2
0

2

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 s
le

e
p

in
g

 r
o

u
g

h
 o

n
 a

 s
in

g
le

 n
ig

h
t 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
 a

n
d

 

A
d

v
is

o
ry

 

S
e

rv
ic

e

A
n

n
u

a
lly

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
F

a
ll

7
1

0
7

↑
0

4
6

3
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

2
8

B
V

-2
1

3

C
P

A
-H

2
4

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
 w

h
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
e

m
s
e

lv
e

s
 a

s
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
, 

w
h

o
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

e
d

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

's
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

(s
),

 a
n

d
 f

o
r 

w
h

o
m

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 c

a
s
e

w
o

rk
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
 t

h
e

ir
 

s
it
u

a
ti
o

n
.

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
 a

n
d

 

A
d

v
is

o
ry

 

S
e

rv
ic

e

M
o

n
th

ly

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
R

is
e

1
3

3
↑

5
2

8
7

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

2
9

C
P

-H
A

S
5

0

R
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
0

 h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
, 

a
s
 d

e
fi
n

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il.

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
 a

n
d

 

A
d

v
is

o
ry

 

S
e

rv
ic

e

M
o

n
th

ly

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
F

a
ll

5
.3

0
5

.2
3

3
.5

0
↑

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

M
id

 t
h

re
s
h

o
ld

 p
o

s
it
io

n
 f

o
r 

C
P

A
 

C
it
y
 a

n
d

 H
u

n
s
le

t 
(9

.5
%

 e
m

p
ty

) 
M

a
in

 c
a

u
s
e

s
 a

re
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
'b

u
y
-t

o
-l
e

t' 
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 a

n
d

 'i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t' 
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
. 

S
in

c
e

 F
e

b
 0

7
 t

h
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

 m
a

k
e

-u
p

 o
f 

c
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
g

ro
w

th
 i
n

v
e

s
to

rs
 s

e
lli

n
g

 o
n

 t
h

e
ir
 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 a

s
 t

h
e

 s
lo

w
 d

o
w

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
t 

s
ta

rt
e

d
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 e
ff

e
c
t.

 H
e

a
d

in
g

le
y
 (

6
.9

%
 e

m
p

ty
) 

a
n

d
 H

y
d

e
 P

a
rk

 &
 W

o
o

d
h

o
u

s
e

 (
7

.3
8

 e
m

p
ty

) 
a

re
 t

ra
d

it
io

n
a

lly
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
e

re
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 c

h
o

o
s
e

 t
o

 l
iv

e
, 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
m

a
rk

e
t 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 d
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

p
u

rp
o

s
e

 b
u

ilt
 s

tu
d

e
n

t 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

.

T
h

e
 E

m
p

ty
 P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 T

e
a

m
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
A

c
ti
o

n
 T

e
a

m
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

s
tr

u
m

e
n

ta
l 
in

 t
a

c
k
lin

g
 t

h
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 b

ro
u

g
h

t 
a

b
o

u
t 

b
y
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 b

e
in

g
 l
e

ft
 u

n
o

c
c
u

p
ie

d
.

T
a

rg
e

t 
s
e

t 
a

t 
z
e

ro
. 

L
C

C
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

h
a

v
e

  
h

o
s
te

l 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
. 

a
s
 d

e
fi
n

e
d

 i
n

 B
V

1
8

3
b

. 
C

P
A

 U
p

p
e

r 
th

re
s
h

o
ld

T
h

is
 f

ig
u

re
 i
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
s
e

t 
a

t 
<

 1
0

. 
T

h
e

 l
a

s
t 

fo
rm

a
l 
c
o

u
n

t 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 w

a
s
 0

9
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7

. 
T

h
is

 f
o

u
n

d
 7

 (
+

1
) 

ro
u

g
h

 s
le

e
p

e
rs

. 
T

h
e

 +
1

 i
s
 a

 n
o

n
 E

U
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
s
le

e
p

in
g

 r
o

u
g

h
 b

u
t 

w
it
h

o
u

t 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 p

u
b

lic
 f

u
n

d
s
 a

n
d

 w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 e

lig
ib

le
 f

o
r 

a
n

y
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 d
u

ty
.

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 e
x
c
e

lle
n

t 
re

s
u

lt
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

  
ta

rg
e

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 e

x
c
e

e
d

e
d

 b
y
 1

2
.7

%
 w

it
h

 a
 f

ig
u

re
 o

f 
3

.3
8

 p
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
 i
n

 0
7

/0
8

. 
P

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 A
S

T
's

, 
S

a
n

c
tu

a
ry

 i
n

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 A
rc

h
w

a
y
 /

 Y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
rs

o
n

 m
e

d
ia

ti
o

n
s
.

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 b
e

s
t 

v
a

lu
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 m
e

a
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
in

d
ic

a
te

s
 t

h
a

t 
a

n
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

b
o

d
y
 h

a
s
 a

n
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

p
o

lic
y
 a

n
d

 a
c
ts

 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

is
. 

T
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
e

n
 u

p
d

a
ti
n

g
 t

h
is

 p
o

lic
y
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

d
h

e
re

n
c
e

 t
o

 i
t.

F
o

o
d

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 a

llo
w

s
 2

8
 d

a
y
s
 f

o
rm

 t
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 d

a
te

 f
o

r 
in

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t,
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 a

llo
w

in
g

 u
n

ti
l 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

A
p

ri
l 
fo

r 
a

ll 
d

u
e

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 t
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

is
 b

e
in

g
 m

e
t 

fo
r 

a
ll 

h
ig

h
 r

is
k
 f

o
o

d
 p

re
m

is
e

s
.

N
.A

.

T
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 a

 c
h

e
c
k
lis

t 
o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
 t

h
e

 s
a

m
e

 s
c
o

re
 a

s
 i
n

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

rs

4

Page 36



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 -
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
0
7
/0
8

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

&
 

M
e

a
s
u

re

G
o

o
d

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 

T
a

rg
e

t

F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 

R
e

s
u

lt

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 Y
e

a
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

T
re

n
d

 

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

B
o

tt
o

m
 

Q
u

a
rt

ile
 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

d
a

ta
)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

p
o

s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o

p

8
 =

 B
o

tt
o

m

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

d
a

ta
)

D
a

ta
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Is
s
u

e
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

3
0

L
K

I-
H

A
S

1
1

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
a

n
c
tu

a
ry

 i
n

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
 a

n
d

 

A
d

v
is

o
ry

 

S
e

rv
ic

e

M
o

n
th

ly

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
R

is
e

1
7

4
.0

0
2

5
0

.0
0

3
0

5
.0

0
↑

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

3
1

L
K

I-
H

A
S

4

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

s
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
(c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

)

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
 a

n
d

 

A
d

v
is

o
ry

 

S
e

rv
ic

e

M
o

n
th

ly

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
F

a
ll

1
7

2
2

.0
0

1
7

0
0

.0
0

1
1

4
2

.0
0

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

3
2

L
K

I-
H

A
S

5

L
A

A
-S

S
C

2
6

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

s
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 p
a

re
n

ta
l 
e

v
ic

ti
o

n
 (

c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

)

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
 a

n
d

 

A
d

v
is

o
ry

 

S
e

rv
ic

e

M
o

n
th

ly

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
F

a
ll

2
5

4
.0

0
2

1
0

.0
0

1
0

6
.0

0
↑

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

3
3

S
P

-K
P

I1

S
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 w

h
o

 a
re

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
ta

in
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
liv

in
g

.

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
 a

n
d

 

A
d

v
is

o
ry

 

S
e

rv
ic

e

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

N
.A

.
9

9
.5

0
9

9
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

3
4

S
P

-K
P

I2

S
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 m
o

v
e

d
 o

n
 i
n

 a
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 w

a
y
 f

ro
m

 t
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 l
iv

in
g

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
 a

n
d

 

A
d

v
is

o
ry

 

S
e

rv
ic

e

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

N
.A

.
7

6
.0

0
6

0
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

3
5

B
V

-1
8

4
a

C
P

-H
M

5
1

 C
P

A
-

H
1

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
o

m
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 n
o

n
-d

e
c
e

n
t 

a
t 

1
s
t 

A
p

ri
l 
0

7
.

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

M
o

n
th

ly

%
F

a
ll

3
9

.0
0

3
3

.0
0

3
5

.0
2

↑
1

3
.0

4
2

5
2

3
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

3
6

B
V

-1
8

4
b

C
P

A
-H

2
T

h
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

n
o

n
-d

e
c
e

n
t 

L
A

 h
o

m
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

o
t 

d
e

c
e

n
t 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 1
s
t 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0

7
 a

n
d

 1
s
t 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0

8

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

M
o

n
th

ly

%
R

is
e

1
4

.0
5

4
0

.0
0

3
4

.8
5

↑
3

1
.5

5
.2

1
5

.9
5

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

T
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 t

h
e

 h
is

to
ri
c
a

l 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
n

o
n

-d
e

c
e

n
c
y
 i
.e

. 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

(A
p

r 
1

 2
0

0
7

).
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
s
 s

lig
h

tl
y
 b

e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t 

b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 i
t 

h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 u

p
d

a
ti
n

g
 o

f 
d

e
c
e

n
c
y
 o

n
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 f

ro
m

 p
ri
o

r 
to

 2
0

0
7

/0
8

 w
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 m
o

re
 o

f 
a

 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t.

  
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 b

y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
2

0
0

7
/0

8
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 h
a

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 t

o
 2

2
.8

1
%

. 
B

y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

0
8

/0
9

 w
e

 a
re

 a
im

in
g

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 n
o

n
-d

e
c
e

n
c
y
 t

o
 1

5
%

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
 s

p
e

n
d

 o
f 

c
ir
c
a

. 
£

1
1

0
m

 (
s
ti
ll 

to
 b

e
 f

in
a

lis
e

d
).

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 h
a

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 d

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
 d

u
e

 t
o

 2
 k

e
y
 f

a
c
to

rs
:

- 
A

L
M

O
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

d
e

c
e

n
c
y
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
.

- 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
s
 n

o
w

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 f

ro
m

 K
e

y
s
to

n
e

 u
s
in

g
 m

o
re

 a
c
c
u

ra
te

 m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
 a

n
d

 d
a

ta
 s

o
u

rc
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
's

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 b
y
 o

v
e

r 
8

%
.

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
s
 s

lig
h

tl
y
 b

e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t 

b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 i
t 

h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 u

p
d

a
ti
n

g
 o

f 
d

e
c
e

n
c
y
 o

n
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 f

ro
m

 p
ri
o

r 
to

 2
0

0
7

/0
8

 w
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 m
o

re
 o

f 
a

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t.

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 h
a

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 d

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
 d

u
e

 t
o

 2
 k

e
y
 f

a
c
to

rs
:

- 
A

L
M

O
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

d
e

c
e

n
c
y
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
.

- 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
s
 n

o
w

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 f

ro
m

 K
e

y
s
to

n
e

 u
s
in

g
 m

o
re

 a
c
c
u

ra
te

 m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
 a

n
d

 d
a

ta
 s

o
u

rc
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
's

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 b
y
 o

v
e

r 
8

%
. 

C
P

A
 U

p
p

e
r 

th
re

s
h

o
ld

A
s
 w

it
h

 H
A

S
4

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

t 
w

a
s
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 e

x
c
e

e
d

e
d

 b
y
 3

3
%

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 p

re
d

ic
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 e

x
c
e

e
d

e
d

 b
y
 1

2
.5

%
. 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 h
a

s
 s

e
e

n
 o

n
ly

 a
 s

lig
h

t 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

0
.0

9
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 Q

3
 a

n
d

 Q
4

. 
2

2
4

 a
c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

s
 i
n

 Q
4

  
tr

a
n

s
la

te
s
 t

o
 0

.6
8

 h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
0

 

p
e

r 
m

o
n

th
 (

h
o

m
e

le
s
s
 a

c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

s
/ 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s
(3

2
5

,0
2

7
))

*1
0

0
0

 =
 0

.6
8

.

T
a

rg
e

t 
e

x
c
e

e
d

e
d

. 
O

f 
th

e
 3

0
5

 i
n

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t,
 o

n
ly

 1
5

 s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
 m

a
d

e
 a

 h
o

m
e

le
s
s
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 e

q
u

a
ti
n

g
 t

o
 a

 p
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 r

a
te

 o
f 

9
5

%
.

T
h

e
 0

7
/0

8
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

t 
s
e

t 
a

t 
1

,7
0

0
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 e

x
c
e

e
d

e
d

 b
y
 3

2
.8

%
. 

 I
n

 Q
3

 t
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 1

9
4

 A
c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

s
 f

ro
m

 6
8

1
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 (

ra
ti
o

 o
f 

1
:3

.5
) 

w
h

e
re

a
s
 i
n

 Q
4

 t
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 2

2
4

 A
c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

s
 f

ro
m

 1
0

6
5

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 (

ra
ti
o

 1
:4

.8
) 

w
h

ic
h

 s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
e

 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

th
e

 O
p

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 P
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 i
s
 h

a
v
in

g
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 A
S

T
s
, 

th
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 S
a

n
c
tu

a
ry

 i
n

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

rc
h

w
a

y
 m

e
d

ia
ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

.

A
n

 e
x
e

rc
is

e
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e

 e
ff

e
c
t 

o
f 

S
t 

G
e

o
rg

e
's

 C
ry

p
t 

O
v
e

rn
ig

h
t 

C
e

n
tr

e
 s

h
o

w
e

d
 a

 n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

4
%

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r.

 I
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
o

rk
 h

a
s
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

d
 t

o
 a

n
 u

p
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d

 i
n

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 f
o

u
r 

q
u

a
rt

e
rs

 e
.g

. 
L

e
e

d
s
 w

o
m

e
n

s
 A

id
 Q

1
=

5
5

%
  

Q
4

=
8

0
%

  
S

a
lv

a
ti
o

n
 A

rm
y
 Q

1
=

8
2

  
Q

4
=

9
4

  
O

v
e

rn
ig

h
t 

C
e

n
tr

e
 Q

1
=

2
5

%
  

Q
4

=
5

5
%

.

It
 i
s
 e

n
v
is

a
g

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

s
u

c
h

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 i
n

 a
 w

id
e

r 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 a
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 s
h

o
w

n
 a

t 
c
ri
ti
c
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 t

h
e

 O
v
e

rn
ig

h
t 

C
e

n
tr

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
. 

T
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 5
0

%
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 h
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s
 a

c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 p
a

re
n

ta
l 
e

v
ic

ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 Q

3
 a

n
d

 Q
4

 2
0

0
8

. 
 8

.8
 p

e
r 

m
o

n
th

 i
s
 t

h
e

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

h
o

m
e

le
s
s
 a

c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 p
a

re
n

ta
l 
e

v
ic

ti
o

n
. 

T
h

is
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 f

ig
u

re
 o

f 
1

0
6

 f
o

r 
0

7
/0

8
. 

T
h

is
 e

x
c
e

e
d

s
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 

2
1

0
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 L

P
S

A
2

. 

T
h

e
 n

u
m

e
ra

to
r 

fi
g

u
re

 (
3

9
0

1
3

) 
is

  
th

e
 a

g
g

re
g

a
te

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 w

h
o

 w
e

re
 a

s
s
is

te
d

 t
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
ta

in
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
liv

in
g

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 f
o

u
r 

q
u

a
rt

e
rs

. 
 T

h
e

 d
e

n
o

m
in

a
to

r 
fi
g

u
re

 (
3

9
5

7
4

) 
is

 t
h

e
 a

g
g

re
g

a
te

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 w

h
o

 w
e

re
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 i
n

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 a
im

 w
a

s
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
n

d
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
liv

in
g

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 f
o

u
r 

q
u

a
rt

e
rs

.

5

Page 37



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 -
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
0
7
/0
8

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

&
 

M
e

a
s
u

re

G
o

o
d

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 

T
a

rg
e

t

F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 

R
e

s
u

lt

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 Y
e

a
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

T
re

n
d

 

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

B
o

tt
o

m
 

Q
u

a
rt

ile
 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

d
a

ta
)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

p
o

s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o

p

8
 =

 B
o

tt
o

m

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

d
a

ta
)

D
a

ta
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Is
s
u

e
s

3
7

B
V

-2
1

2

C
P

A
-H

8
A

v
e

ra
g

e
 t

im
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 t

o
 r

e
-l
e

t 
lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
o

u
s
in

g
.

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

M
o

n
th

ly

D
a

y
s

F
a

ll
4

1
.0

0
3

2
.0

0
4

0
.0

5
↑

2
6

4
6

6
0

2
S

o
m

e
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

3
8

B
V

-6
3

C
P

-H
M

5
2

  

L
A

A
-H

C
O

P
2

1
E

n
e

rg
y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 -

 t
h

e
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 S

A
P

 r
a

ti
n

g
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
w

n
e

d
 d

w
e

lli
n

g
s

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
R

is
e

6
5

.0
0

6
7

.0
0

7
5

.6
0

↑
7

2
6

5
6

5
5

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

3
9

B
V

-6
6

a

C
P

A
-H

6
R

e
n

t 
c
o

lle
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
s
 a

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
re

n
ts

 o
w

e
d

 o
n

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
(H

R
A

) 

d
w

e
lli

n
g

s
.

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

M
o

n
th

ly

%
R

is
e

9
6

.6
9

9
7

.0
0

9
6

.5
3

↓
9

8
.5

7
9

7
.0

7
9

5
.3

2
2

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

4
0

B
V

-6
6

b
T

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
e

n
a

n
ts

 w
it
h

 m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 s

e
v
e

n
 w

e
e

k
s
 o

f 
(g

ro
s
s
) 

re
n

t 
a

rr
e

a
rs

 a
s
 a

 

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
o

u
n

c
il 

te
n

a
n

ts
.

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

M
o

n
th

ly

%
F

a
ll

7
.2

9
7

.0
0

6
.9

5
↑

3
.8

9
7

.6
1

0
.2

2
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

4
1

B
V

-6
6

c

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
e

n
a

n
ts

 i
n

 a
rr

e
a

rs
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 h
a

d
 N

o
ti
c
e

s
 S

e
e

k
in

g
 P

o
s
s
e

s
s
io

n
 s

e
rv

e
d

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

M
o

n
th

ly

%
F

a
ll

2
4

.9
3

2
3

.5
0

2
0

.6
4

↑
1

6
.5

5
3

2
.9

9
2

9
.9

4
3

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

4
2

B
V

-6
6

d

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
e

n
a

n
ts

 e
v
ic

te
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
re

n
t 

a
rr

e
a

rs
.

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

M
o

n
th

ly

%
F

a
ll

0
.2

9
0

.2
6

0
.2

9
↔

0
.2

0
.4

9
0

.5
4

6
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

4
3

C
P

-H
M

5
3

R
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
L

e
e

d
s
 h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
n

d
 s

u
ff

e
r 

fr
o

m
 f

u
e

l 
p

o
v
e

rt
y
.

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

A
n

n
u

a
lly

%
F

a
ll

2
7

.5
0

1
3

.5
0

2
2

.0
0

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
S

o
m

e
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

4
4

L
K

I-
H

M
A

3

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

re
n

t 
lo

s
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 d
w

e
lli

n
g

s
 b

e
c
o

m
in

g
 v

a
c
a

n
t

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

M
o

n
th

ly

%
F

a
ll

1
.6

0
1

.5
0

1
.2

6
↑

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

4
5

L
K

I-
H

M
A

4

C
P

A
-H

5
T

h
e

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 t

im
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 n

o
n

-u
rg

e
n

t 
re

s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 r

e
p

a
ir
s

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

M
o

n
th

ly

D
a

y
s

F
a

ll
1

2
.7

0
1

1
.0

0
9

.7
6

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

N
.A

.

N
.A

.

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 f
u

e
l 
c
o

s
ts

 f
o

r 
b

o
th

 e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 a

n
d

 g
a

s
 h

a
v
e

 s
e

e
n

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
ri
s
e

s
 (

u
p

 t
o

 8
0

%
) 

th
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 5
%

 +
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

n
e

rg
y
 g

ra
n

ts
.

N
.A

.

It
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 d

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
e

v
ic

ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 a

rr
e

a
rs

 c
a

s
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
n

g
 t

o
 p

o
o

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
n

 B
V

6
6

a
.

C
P

A
 M

id
 t

h
re

s
h

o
ld

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

.

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

h
a

s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 a

n
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
s
 w

o
rs

e
 t

h
a

n
 2

0
0

6
/0

7
 t

h
is

 i
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 a
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

.

A
p

p
ly

in
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
, 

a
 n

e
w

 t
a

rg
e

t 
fi
g

u
re

 o
f 

4
0

 d
a

y
s
 w

a
s
 s

e
t,

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

re
n

d
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

.

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 A

L
M

O
s
 r

a
n

g
in

g
 f

ro
m

 W
N

W
H

L
 a

t 
3

0
.4

 d
a

y
s
 t

o
 B

IT
M

O
 a

t 
5

0
.5

2
 d

a
y
s
. 

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 L
a

n
d

lo
rd

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 m

o
n

it
o

rs
 A

L
M

O
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
. 

 A
V

H
L

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 d
u

ri
n

g
 

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 -
 f

ro
m

 7
8

 t
o

 4
3

 d
a

y
s
. 

 T
h

is
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

w
a

s
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 b
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 L

a
n

d
lo

rd
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

p
o

s
it
io

n
 u

p
d

a
te

s
.

C
P

A
 U

p
p

e
r 

T
h

re
s
h

o
ld

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

Y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 w
a

s
 b

e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n

d
 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

 d
u

e
 t

o
:

- 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
s
 a

n
d

 a
rr

e
a

rs
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 A

L
M

O
 R

e
v
ie

w
.

- 
p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
d

e
b

t 
le

v
e

ls
 o

f 
te

n
a

n
ts

 r
e

fl
e

c
ti
n

g
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
lim

a
te

.

- 
Im

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 R
e

c
o

v
e

ry
.

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 s
o

m
e

 v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

s
 i
n

 A
L

M
O

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

, 
ra

n
g

in
g

 f
ro

m
 A

V
H

L
 a

t 
9

6
.2

9
%

 t
o

 W
N

W
H

 a
t 

9
6

.8
1

%
. 

 B
IT

M
O

's
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 w

e
a

k
 a

t 
9

4
.0

3
%

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

. 
 W

h
ile

 A
V

H
L

 i
s
 t

h
e

 w
e

a
k
e

s
t 

A
L

M
O

 t
h

e
y
 h

a
d

 t
h

e
 s

m
a

lle
s
t 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 

d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
. 

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 L
a

n
d

lo
rd

 w
ill

 b
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 a

 p
ie

c
e

 o
f 

w
o

rk
 d

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 w

h
a

t 
fa

c
to

rs
 a

re
 i
m

p
a

c
ti
n

g
 o

n
 L

e
e

d
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 t

o
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
te

 s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 b

y
 o

th
e

r 
s
tr

o
n

g
e

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
. 

 T
h

e
 s

c
o

p
in

g
 o

f 
th

is
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 p
la

c
e

 

o
v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

m
o

n
th

.

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 e
x
c
e

e
d

s
 C

P
A

 U
p

p
e

r 
th

re
s
h

o
ld

6

Page 38



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 -
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
0
7
/0
8

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

&
 

M
e

a
s
u

re

G
o

o
d

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 

T
a

rg
e

t

F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 

R
e

s
u

lt

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 Y
e

a
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

T
re

n
d

 

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

B
o

tt
o

m
 

Q
u

a
rt

ile
 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

d
a

ta
)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

p
o

s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o

p

8
 =

 B
o

tt
o

m

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

d
a

ta
)

D
a

ta
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Is
s
u

e
s

4
6

L
K

I-
H

M
A

7

C
P

A
-H

4
T

h
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

u
rg

e
n

t 
re

p
a

ir
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 w
it
h

in
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
ti
m

e
 l
im

it
s

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

M
o

n
th

ly

%
R

is
e

9
6

.7
2

9
7

.3
5

9
8

.5
4

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

4
7

L
K

I-
N

R
4

L
A

A
-S

S
C

3
2

A
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
o

m
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

ts
 d

e
c
e

n
c
y
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
H

o
u

s
in

g
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

M
o

n
th

ly

%
R

is
e

7
0

.2
2

8
0

.0
0

7
7

.1
9

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

4
8

B
V

-6
4

C
P

-P
S

H
2

  

C
P

A
-H

2
3

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
d

w
e

lli
n

g
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 r

e
tu

rn
e

d
 i
n

to
 o

c
c
u

p
a

ti
o

n
 o

r 
d

e
m

o
lis

h
e

d
 a

s
 a

 d
ir
e

c
t 

re
s
u

lt
 

o
f 

a
c
ti
o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

P
ri
v
a

te
 S

e
c
to

r 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

M
o

n
th

ly

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
R

is
e

2
3

7
7

.0
0

1
5

0
0

.0
0

2
9

8
9

.0
0

↑
9

5
8

5
6

1
1

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

4
9

B
V

-8
2

a
(i
)

C
P

-R
C

5
0

 C
P

A
-

E
6

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
e

n
t 

b
y
 t

h
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
re

c
y
c
lin

g

R
e

fu
s
e

 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 &

 

W
a

s
te

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

1
5

.8
3

1
8

.0
7

1
7

.8
1

↑
2

2
.8

8
1

5
.7

9
1

5
.1

4
3

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

5
0

B
V

-8
2

a
(i
i)

C
P

A
-E

6
T

o
ta

l 
to

n
n

a
g

e
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
e

n
t 

b
y
 t

h
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
re

c
y
c
lin

g

R
e

fu
s
e

 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 &

 

W
a

s
te

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
R

is
e

5
3

4
8

6
.0

0
6

1
4

3
5

.0
0

5
8

8
0

8
.0

0
↑

1
6

8
6

2
.2

5
6

9
5

1
.7

3
3

4
0

6
0

.2
2

2
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

5
1

B
V

-8
2

b
(i
)

C
P

-R
C

5
1

 C
P

A
-

E
6

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 s
e

n
t 

b
y
 t

h
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
c
o

m
p

o
s
ti
n

g
 o

r 
tr

e
a

tm
e

n
t 

b
y
 a

n
a

e
ro

b
ic

 

d
ig

e
s
ti
o

n

R
e

fu
s
e

 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 &

 

W
a

s
te

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

6
.4

7
7

.3
9

8
.1

1
↑

1
5

.5
3

5
.4

9
7

.2
2

6
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

5
2

B
V

-8
2

b
(i
i)

T
h

e
 t

o
n

n
a

g
e

 o
f 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 s
e

n
t 

b
y
 t

h
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
c
o

m
p

o
s
ti
n

g
 o

r 
tr

e
a

tm
e

n
t 

b
y
 a

n
a

e
ro

b
ic

 

d
ig

e
s
ti
o

n

R
e

fu
s
e

 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 &

 

W
a

s
te

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
R

is
e

2
1

8
4

5
.0

0
2

5
1

2
5

.0
0

2
6

7
7

6
.0

0
↑

1
0

7
9

5
.8

6
2

6
1

6
.1

2
1

5
9

2
1

.8
5

2
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 e
x
c
e

e
d

s
 C

P
A

 U
p

p
e

r 
th

re
s
h

o
ld

T
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ts

 t
h

e
 d

e
c
e

n
c
y
 s

it
u

a
ti
o

n
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

 S
e

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

B
V

1
8

4
a

.

N
.A

.

S
in

c
e

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

, 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
 b

y
 a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 2

%
. 

T
h

is
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 9
%

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 S
O

R
T

 t
o

n
n

a
g

e
s
, 

a
 1

7
%

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
g

la
s
s
 r

e
c
y
c
le

d
, 

a
n

d
 a

 6
8

%
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
ti
m

b
e

r 
to

n
n

e
s
 r

e
c
y
c
le

d
 

(a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
ti
m

b
e

r 
re

c
y
c
le

d
 w

a
s
 1

7
%

 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a

n
 o

ri
g

in
a

l 
e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
).

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

is
 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s
 m

is
s
e

d
 i
ts

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

b
y
 0

.2
6

%
. 

A
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
fa

c
to

rs
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

is
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
; 

th
e

 r
is

in
g

 p
ri
c
e

 o
f 

s
c
ra

p
 m

e
ta

l 
(w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 l
e

d
 t

o
 a

 2
6

%
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
m

e
ta

l 
re

c
y
c
le

d
) 

a
n

d
 a

 2
4

%
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

fr
id

g
e

s
 r

e
c
y
c
le

d
, 

b
e

lie
v
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
m

e
 i
n

to
 f

o
rc

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

u
m

m
e

r.
 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
's

 m
a

in
 f

o
c
u

s
 i
s
 o

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

o
s
ti
n

g
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 L
K

I-
8

2
 A

&
B

(i
) 

(s
e

e
 b

e
lo

w
) 

a
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 n
e

w
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
s
e

t 
(N

I 
1

9
2

).

P
le

a
s
e

 n
o

te
 t

h
e

s
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

a
l 
u

n
ti
l 
v
e

ri
fi
e

d
 b

y
 W

a
s
te

 D
a

ta
 F

lo
w

. 
 

P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
B

V
8

2
a

(i
).

T
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

s
e

t 
fo

r 
le

v
e

ls
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 c
o

m
p

o
s
te

d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 e

x
c
e

e
d

e
d

. 
T

h
is

 c
a

n
 b

e
 a

tt
ri
b

u
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
e

r 
th

a
n

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
n

n
a

g
e

 c
o

lle
c
te

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 g
a

rd
e

n
 w

a
s
te

 p
ilo

t 
(t

o
n

n
a

g
e

 w
a

s
 u

p
 3

6
%

 o
n

 o
ri
g

in
a

l 
e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
) 

a
n

d
 g

re
e

n
 t

o
n

n
a

g
e

s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 a

t 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 s
it
e

s
 b

e
in

g
 

h
ig

h
e

r 
th

a
n

 f
o

re
c
a

s
t.

O
v
e

ra
ll,

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

's
 m

a
in

 f
o

c
u

s
 i
s
 o

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

o
s
ti
n

g
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 L
K

I-
8

2
 A

&
B

(i
) 

(s
e

e
 b

e
lo

w
) 

a
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 n
e

w
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
s
e

t 
(N

I 
1

9
2

).

P
le

a
s
e

 n
o

te
 t

h
e

s
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

a
l 
u

n
ti
l 
v
e

ri
fi
e

d
 b

y
 W

a
s
te

 D
a

ta
 F

lo
w

. 
 

7

Page 39



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 -
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
0
7
/0
8

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

&
 

M
e

a
s
u

re

G
o

o
d

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 

T
a

rg
e

t

F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 

R
e

s
u

lt

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 Y
e

a
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

T
re

n
d

 

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

B
o

tt
o

m
 

Q
u

a
rt

ile
 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

d
a

ta
)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

p
o

s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o

p

8
 =

 B
o

tt
o

m

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

d
a

ta
)

D
a

ta
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Is
s
u

e
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
B

V
8

2
b

(i
).

8

Page 40



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 -
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
0
7
/0
8

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

&
 

M
e

a
s
u

re

G
o

o
d

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 

T
a

rg
e

t

F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 

R
e

s
u

lt

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 Y
e

a
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

T
re

n
d

 

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

B
o

tt
o

m
 

Q
u

a
rt

ile
 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

d
a

ta
)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

p
o

s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o

p

8
 =

 B
o

tt
o

m

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

d
a

ta
)

D
a

ta
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Is
s
u

e
s

5
3

B
V

-8
2

c
(i
)

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l 
to

n
n

a
g

e
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 u
s
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
c
o

v
e

r 
h

e
a

t,
 

p
o

w
e

r 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

e
n

e
rg

y
 s

o
u

rc
e

s

R
e

fu
s
e

 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 &

 

W
a

s
te

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
N

.A
.

0
.5

3
0

.0
2

0
.3

5
1

1
.6

6
0

2
6

.9
2

5
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

5
4

B
V

-8
2

c
(i
i)

T
o

n
n

a
g

e
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 u
s
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
c
o

v
e

r 
h

e
a

t,
 p

o
w

e
r 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
e

n
e

rg
y
 

s
o

u
rc

e
s

R
e

fu
s
e

 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 &

 

W
a

s
te

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
N

.A
.

1
7

7
5

.0
0

7
2

.0
0

1
1

6
0

.0
0

2
5

4
8

0
.6

4
1

.3
6

7
7

1
8

0
.9

7
4

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

5
5

B
V

-8
2

d
(i
)

C
P

-R
C

5
2

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 l
a

n
d

fi
lle

d

R
e

fu
s
e

 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 &

 

W
a

s
te

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
F

a
ll

7
7

.0
9

7
4

.5
2

7
3

.7
2

↑
5

5
.6

3
7

1
.6

9
4

7
.8

1
6

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

5
6

B
V

-8
2

d
(i
i)

T
h

e
 t

o
n

n
a

g
e

 o
f 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 l
a

n
d

fi
lle

d

R
e

fu
s
e

 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 &

 

W
a

s
te

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
F

a
ll

2
6

0
4

1
6

.0
0

2
5

3
3

5
7

.0
0

2
4

3
3

7
4

.0
0

↑
4

9
1

4
5

.7
6

1
7

7
6

3
6

.4
1

0
8

7
3

7
.9

7
6

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

5
7

B
V

-8
4

a

C
P

A
-E

2
6

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

k
ilo

g
ra

m
s
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
te

d
 p

e
r 

h
e

a
d

 o
f 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n

R
e

fu
s
e

 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 &

 

W
a

s
te

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

K
G

F
a

ll
4

6
7

.1
8

4
6

7
.2

1
4

4
0

.0
4

↑
3

9
5

4
8

0
.1

4
5

2
.9

7
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

5
8

B
V

-8
4

b
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

in
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

k
ilo

g
ra

m
s
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 

c
o

lle
c
te

d
 p

e
r 

h
e

a
d

 o
f 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n

R
e

fu
s
e

 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 &

 

W
a

s
te

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
F

a
ll

1
.0

8
0

.0
1

-5
.8

1
↑

-1
.7

8
2

.5
1

-1
.2

4
7

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

T
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 i
n

 f
o

u
r 

p
a

rt
s
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
 `

c
' o

n
ly

 a
p

p
lie

s
 t

o
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 w

h
o

 u
s
e

 a
n

 i
n

c
in

e
ra

to
r.

  
A

s
 s

u
c
h

, 
th

e
 q

u
a

n
ti
ty

 o
f 

c
o

n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
 r

e
c
y
c
la

te
 L

C
C

 d
is

p
o

s
e

 o
f 

in
 t

h
is

 w
a

y
 i
s
 n

e
g

lig
ib

le
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 t
h

e
 c

o
lo

u
r 

c
o

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 `
g

o
o

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

' c
o

lu
m

n
 i
s
 i
rr

e
le

v
a

n
t.

 

T
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

fo
rm

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
s
e

t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 L
e

e
d

s
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 o

n
 i
t 

in
 f

u
tu

re
.

P
le

a
s
e

 n
o

te
 t

h
e

s
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

a
l 
u

n
ti
l 
v
e

ri
fi
e

d
 b

y
 W

a
s
te

 D
a

ta
 F

lo
w

. 
 

P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
B

V
8

2
c
(i
).

T
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
w

a
s
te

 s
e

n
t 

to
 l
a

n
d

fi
ll 

in
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
 w

a
s
 o

v
e

r 
1

7
,0

0
0

 t
o

n
n

e
s
 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
s
e

n
t 

to
 l
a

n
d

fi
ll 

in
 2

0
0

6
/0

7
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
L

e
e

d
s
 h

a
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r.
 T

h
is

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 c

a
n

 b
e

 d
ir
e

c
tl
y
 a

tt
ri
b

u
te

d
 t

o
 

th
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 m
a

d
e

 i
n

 p
a

rt
 a

 a
n

d
 b

 o
f 

th
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r.

In
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

o
th

e
r 

w
a

s
te

 d
is

p
o

s
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 

v
a

lid
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
a

re
 o

u
r 

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 A

ll 
E

n
g

la
n

d
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

s
 a

s
 t

h
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 s

k
e

w
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 f
a

c
t 

th
a

t 
a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 i
n

c
in

e
ra

to
rs

. 
A

ls
o

, 
w

it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
o

re
 c

it
ie

s
, 

2
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

w
a

s
te

 d
is

p
o

s
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 3
 h

a
v
e

 i
n

c
in

e
ra

to
rs

 a
n

d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h

 t
h

e
ir
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 m
a

rk
e

d
ly

 b
e

tt
e

r 
th

a
n

 L
e

e
d

s
 o

n
 t

h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
a

n
d

, 
u

n
ti
l 
L

e
e

d
s
 m

a
k
e

s
 a

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 o
n

 i
ts

 w
a

s
te

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

u
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 a
p

p
e

a
r 

n
o

t 
a

s
 g

o
o

d
.

P
le

a
s
e

 n
o

te
 t

h
e

s
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

a
l 
u

n
ti
l 
v
e

ri
fi
e

d
 b

y
 W

a
s
te

 D
a

ta
 F

lo
w

. 
 

P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
B

V
8

2
d

(i
).

T
h

e
 k

ilo
g

ra
m

s
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 p
e

r 
h

e
a

d
 o

f 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 b

y
 2

7
.1

4
k
g

s
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

. 
T

w
o

 f
a

c
to

rs
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

is
. 

F
ir
s
tl
y
, 

o
u

r 
w

a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 s

u
g

g
e

s
ti
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
o

u
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 t

o
 t

ry
 a

n
d

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
w

a
s
te

 L
e

e
d

s
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

s
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g

. 
 

S
e

c
o

n
d

ly
, 

th
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 f

ig
u

re
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 O
ff

ic
e

 o
f 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 o

f 
L

e
e

d
s
 h

a
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
, 

w
h

ic
h

 h
a

s
 a

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
a

s
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 m

o
re

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 d

iv
id

e
 t

h
e

 t
o

ta
l 
w

a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
.

P
le

a
s
e

 n
o

te
 t

h
e

s
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

a
l 
u

n
ti
l 
v
e

ri
fi
e

d
 b

y
 W

a
s
te

 D
a

ta
 F

lo
w

. 
 

T
h

e
 k

ilo
g

ra
m

s
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 g
e

n
e

ra
te

d
 p

e
r 

h
e

a
d

 o
f 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 b

y
 5

.8
1

%
 s

in
c
e

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 d

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
0

6
/0

7
 (

th
e

 m
o

s
t 

re
c
e

n
t 

d
a

ta
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
).

 B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
is

 d
a

ta
, 

L
e

e
d

s
 w

o
u

ld
 i
n

 t
h

e
 t

o
p

 

q
u

a
rt

ile
.

P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

e
 p

a
rt

 a
 o

f 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
.

9

Page 41



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 -
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
0
7
/0
8

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

&
 

M
e

a
s
u

re

G
o

o
d

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 

T
a

rg
e

t

F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 

R
e

s
u

lt

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 Y
e

a
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

T
re

n
d

 

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

B
o

tt
o

m
 

Q
u

a
rt

ile
 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

d
a

ta
)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

p
o

s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o

p

8
 =

 B
o

tt
o

m

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

d
a

ta
)

D
a

ta
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Is
s
u

e
s

5
9

B
V

-8
6

C
o

s
t 

o
f 

w
a

s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 p

e
r 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld

R
e

fu
s
e

 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 &

 

W
a

s
te

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

A
n

n
u

a
lly

£
F

a
ll

6
3

.4
9

6
4

.2
3

0
.0

0
↑

4
2

.0
4

5
5

.8
1

4
4

.4
2

8
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

6
0

B
V

-8
7

C
o

s
t 

o
f 

w
a

s
te

 d
is

p
o

s
a

l 
p

e
r 

to
n

n
e

 f
o

r 
m

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
w

a
s
te

R
e

fu
s
e

 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 &

 

W
a

s
te

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

A
n

n
u

a
lly

£
F

a
ll

3
1

.1
2

3
8

.3
7

S
e

e
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
4

0
.4

5
5

4
.2

4
4

2
.2

3
2

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

6
1

B
V

-9
0

a

C
P

A
-E

8
A

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 e

x
p

re
s
s
in

g
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n

R
e

fu
s
e

 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 &

 

W
a

s
te

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

S
u

rv
e

y

%
R

is
e

8
2

.0
0

N
.A

.
S

e
e

 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
8

5
7

4
7

7
.2

5
2

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

6
2

B
V

-9
0

b

C
P

A
-E

8
B

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 e

x
p

re
s
s
in

g
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 w
a

s
te

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g

R
e

fu
s
e

 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 &

 

W
a

s
te

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

S
u

rv
e

y

%
R

is
e

7
0

.0
0

N
.A

.
S

e
e

 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
7

5
6

6
5

9
1

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

6
3

B
V

-9
0

c

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 e

x
p

re
s
s
in

g
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 w
a

s
te

 d
is

p
o

s
a

l

R
e

fu
s
e

 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 &

 

W
a

s
te

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

S
u

rv
e

y

%
R

is
e

8
6

.0
0

N
.A

.
S

e
e

 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
8

5
7

7
7

8
.8

7
5

1
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

6
4

B
V

-9
1

C
P

A
-E

7
A

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

's
 a

re
a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
d

 b
y
 a

 k
e

rb
s
id

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

c
y
c
la

b
le

s

R
e

fu
s
e

 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 &

 

W
a

s
te

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

9
2

.4
0

9
5

.0
0

9
2

.6
4

↑
1

0
0

9
5

.4
9

1
.4

3
S

o
m

e
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

6
5

B
V

-9
1

b
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

's
 a

re
a

 s
e

rv
e

d
 b

y
 a

 k
e

rb
s
id

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

t 
le

a
s
t 

tw
o

 

re
c
y
c
la

b
le

s

R
e

fu
s
e

 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 &

 

W
a

s
te

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

9
2

.4
0

9
5

.0
0

9
2

.6
4

↑
1

0
0

9
3

.5
7

4
.9

2
S

o
m

e
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

T
h

e
 f

ig
u

re
s
 f

o
r 

th
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
a

re
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 b

y
 F

in
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

t 
th

e
 t

im
e

 o
f 

ru
n

n
in

g
 t

h
is

 r
e

p
o

rt
.

N
o

 C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 S

u
p

p
lie

d

N
o

 C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 S

u
p

p
lie

d

N
o

 C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 S

u
p

p
lie

d

N
o

 C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 S

u
p

p
lie

d

A
 s

lig
h

t 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
n

 t
h

is
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
 s

in
c
e

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

 b
u

t 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 i
ts

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0

0
7

/0
8

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

a
b

o
v
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
re

 c
it
y
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 f

o
r 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 k

e
rb

s
id

e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 w

h
ic

h
, 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 s
iz

e
 o

f 
L

e
e

d
s
 i
n

 a
n

 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t.

 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r,
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 h

a
s
 t

ri
e

d
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 k

e
rb

s
id

e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
in

 t
h

e
 f

ig
u

re
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

. 
T

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 p
ilo

t 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 &

 A
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 T

e
a

m
 w

h
ic

h
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 t
h

e
 W

o
o

d
h

o
u

s
e

 

a
re

a
 o

f 
L

e
e

d
s
, 

a
n

d
 a

 p
ro

je
c
t 

to
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
h

ig
h

 r
is

e
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 s
h

e
lt
e

re
d

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 a

b
le

 t
o

 r
e

c
y
c
le

.

T
h

e
 `

s
o

m
e

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
' i

n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 d

a
ta

 q
u

a
lit

y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 r

e
la

te
 t

o
 t

h
e

 m
a

p
p

in
g

 o
f 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 o

n
to

 S
u

p
e

rb
a

s
e

 (
th

e
 c

o
m

p
u

te
r 

s
y
s
te

m
 u

s
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
).

 A
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 t
o

 r
e

s
o

lv
e

 t
h

is
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
.

A
 s

lig
h

t 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
n

 t
h

is
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
 s

in
c
e

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

 b
u

t 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 i
ts

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0

0
7

/0
8

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

a
b

o
v
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
re

 c
it
y
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 f

o
r 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 k

e
rb

s
id

e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 w

h
ic

h
, 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 s
iz

e
 o

f 
L

e
e

d
s
 i
n

 a
n

 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t.

 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r,
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 h

a
s
 t

ri
e

d
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 k

e
rb

s
id

e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
in

 t
h

e
 f

ig
u

re
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

. 
T

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 p
ilo

t 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 &

 A
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 T

e
a

m
 w

h
ic

h
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 t
h

e
 W

o
o

d
h

o
u

s
e

 

a
re

a
 o

f 
L

e
e

d
s
, 

a
n

d
 a

 p
ro

je
c
t 

to
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
h

ig
h

 r
is

e
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 s
h

e
lt
e

re
d

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 a

b
le

 t
o

 r
e

c
y
c
le

.

T
h

e
 `

s
o

m
e

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
' i

n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 d

a
ta

 q
u

a
lit

y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 r

e
la

te
 t

o
 t

h
e

 m
a

p
p

in
g

 o
f 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 o

n
to

 S
u

p
e

rb
a

s
e

 (
th

e
 c

o
m

p
u

te
r 

s
y
s
te

m
 u

s
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
).

 A
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 t
o

 r
e

s
o

lv
e

 t
h

is
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
.

1
0

Page 42



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 -
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
0
7
/0
8

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

&
 

M
e

a
s
u

re

G
o

o
d

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 

T
a

rg
e

t

F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 

R
e

s
u

lt

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 Y
e

a
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

T
re

n
d

 

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

B
o

tt
o

m
 

Q
u

a
rt

ile
 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

d
a

ta
)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

p
o

s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o

p

8
 =

 B
o

tt
o

m

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

d
a

ta
)

D
a

ta
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Is
s
u

e
s

6
6

L
K

I-
8

2
 A

&
B

 (
I)

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 s

e
n

t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 o

r 
c
o

m
p

o
s
ti
n

g

R
e

fu
s
e

 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 &

 

W
a

s
te

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

M
o

n
th

ly

%
R

is
e

2
2

.3
0

2
5

.4
6

2
5

.9
2

↑
0

0
2

2
.6

4
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

6
7

L
K

I-
8

2
A

&
B

 (
ii)

T
o

ta
l 
to

n
n

a
g

e
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 s

e
n

t 
fo

r 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

o
s
ti
n

g

R
e

fu
s
e

 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 &

 

W
a

s
te

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

M
o

n
th

ly

N
u

m
b

e
r

R
is

e
7

4
9

7
1

.0
0

8
8

2
1

1
.0

0
8

5
5

8
4

.0
0

↑
0

0
4

9
9

8
2

.0
7

4
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

6
8

L
K

I-
R

C
1

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
s
 m

is
s
e

d
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
,0

0
0

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s

R
e

fu
s
e

 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 &

 

W
a

s
te

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

n
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
F

a
ll

8
5

.0
0

9
5

.0
0

6
7

.9
8

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

6
9

L
K

I-
R

C
1

b

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s
, 

c
o

lle
c
te

d
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
,0

0
0

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s

R
e

fu
s
e

 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 &

 

W
a

s
te

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

9
9

.9
0

9
9

.9
0

9
9

.9
3

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

7
0

B
V

-1
9

9
a

C
P

-S
C

5
0

 C
P

A
-

E
4

  
 L

A
A

-

S
S

C
4

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 (

e
x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 a

s
 a

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

) 
th

a
t 

is
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 a

s
 h

a
v
in

g
 

c
o

m
b

in
e

d
 d

e
p

o
s
it
s
 o

f 
lit

te
r 

a
n

d
 d

e
tr

it
u

s
 t

h
a

t 
fa

ll 
b

e
lo

w
 a

n
 a

c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 l
e

v
e

l
S

tr
e

e
t 

C
le

a
n

s
in

g
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

%
F

a
ll

1
7

.3
0

1
6

.0
0

1
3

.0
0

↑
7

1
7

1
6

.3
6

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

7
1

B
V

-1
9

9
b

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 (

e
x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 a

s
 a

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

) 
fr

o
m

 w
h

ic
h

 u
n

a
c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 

le
v
e

ls
 o

f 
g

ra
ff

it
i 
a

re
 v

is
ib

le
S

tr
e

e
t 

C
le

a
n

s
in

g
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

%
F

a
ll

6
.0

0
7

.0
0

5
.0

0
↑

1
5

1
1

3
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

S
in

c
e

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

, 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

w
a

s
te

 r
e

c
y
c
le

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

o
s
te

d
 b

y
 3

.6
3

%
 T

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
s
e

t 
fo

r 
2

0
0

7
/0

8
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 e

x
c
e

e
d

e
d

 b
y
 0

.4
7

%
.

F
o

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

le
a

s
e

 s
e

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
B

V
8

2
a

 (
I)

 a
n

d
 B

V
8

2
b

(i
).

P
le

a
s
e

 n
o

te
 t

h
e

s
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

a
l 
u

n
ti
l 
v
e

ri
fi
e

d
 b

y
 W

a
s
te

 D
a

ta
 F

lo
w

. 
 

T
h

e
 t

o
n

n
a

g
e

 o
f 

w
a

s
te

 s
e

n
t 

fo
r 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

o
s
ti
n

g
 h

a
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

y
 o

v
e

r 
1

0
,0

0
0

 t
o

n
n

e
s
 s

in
c
e

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

. 
T

h
e

 g
re

a
te

s
t 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

p
o

s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

, 
w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 r

o
ll-

o
u

t 
o

f 
a

 g
a

rd
e

n
 w

a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 f

o
o

d
 w

a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

.

P
le

a
s
e

 n
o

te
 t

h
e

s
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

a
l 
u

n
ti
l 
v
e

ri
fi
e

d
 b

y
 W

a
s
te

 D
a

ta
 F

lo
w

. 
 

F
o

r 
th

e
 t

h
ir
d

 y
e

a
r 

ru
n

n
in

g
, 

th
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s
 m

is
s
e

d
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
,0

0
0

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
s
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
. 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r,
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 h

a
s
 w

o
rk

e
d

 h
a

rd
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
n

e
w

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 b

u
ilt

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
 a

re
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

la
c
k
 b

in
 r

o
u

te
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s
 

e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d

 t
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

s
e

t 
fo

r 
2

0
0

7
/0

8
.

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 o
n

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

 h
a

s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 3
rd

 y
e

a
r 

ru
n

n
in

g
. 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r,
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 h

a
s
 w

o
rk

e
d

 h
a

rd
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
n

e
w

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 b

u
ilt

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
 a

re
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

la
c
k
 b

in
 r

o
u

te
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s
 e

x
c
e

e
d

e
d

 t
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

s
e

t 
fo

r 

2
0

0
7

/0
8

.

L
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
lit

te
r 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 d
e

c
re

a
s
e

, 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 b

ig
g

e
s
t 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 b
e

in
g

 m
a

d
e

 i
n

 a
re

a
s
 w

it
h

 h
ig

h
 d

e
n

s
it
y
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 (

1
8

%
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
) 

a
n

d
 r

e
c
re

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

re
a

s
 (

9
%

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
).

 T
h

is
 c

a
n

 b
e

 a
tt

ri
b

u
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 w

o
rk

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 i
n

 S
u

p
e

r 
O

u
tp

u
t 

A
re

a
's

 (
S

O
A

's
) 

b
y
 

th
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
P

ri
d

e
 T

e
a

m
s
. 

T
h

e
 S

O
A

's
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 N

R
F

 b
u

t 
th

e
 p

a
c
e

 o
f 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
s
 t

h
e

s
e

 N
R

F
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
m

o
v
e

d
 o

n
 a

 s
lid

in
g

 s
c
a

le
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

tw
o

 y
e

a
rs

. 
L

e
v
e

ls
 o

f 
d

e
tr

it
u

s
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

a
ll 

th
e

 l
a

n
d

 u
s
e

 

c
la

s
s
e

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
 b

u
t 

m
o

s
t 

n
o

ti
c
e

a
b

ly
 i
n

 r
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

s
 a

n
d

 'o
th

e
r'
 h

ig
h

w
a

y
s
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 m
a

y
 b

e
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 r

e
q

u
e

s
ts

 f
o

r 
m

a
n

u
a

l 
s
w

e
e

p
e

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

o
t 

a
s
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 a
s
 m

e
c
h

a
n

ic
a

l 
m

e
th

o
d

s
. 

W
it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
 t

o
 f

u
tu

re
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

, 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
in

g
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 w
it
h

 a
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 p
e

rf
o

rm
 t

h
e

s
e

 c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
.

O
u

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
n

 t
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

in
c
e

 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r.

 A
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
, 

a
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
g

ra
ff

it
i 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 i
n

 f
o

u
r 

o
f 

th
e

 t
e

n
 l
a

n
d

 u
s
e

 t
y
p

e
s
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
 i
n

 o
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s
. 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
e

re
 m

o
s
t 

n
o

ti
c
e

a
b

le
 i
n

 r
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

s
 a

n
d

 'o
th

e
r'
 h

ig
h

w
a

y
s
, 

a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 u

s
u

a
l 
'h

o
t 

s
p

o
t' 

a
re

a
s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d

 a
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
. 

In
 a

n
 a

tt
e

m
p

t 
to

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
s
e

 a
re

a
s
, 

th
e

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
s
e

c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 e

n
g

a
g

in
g

 o
th

e
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 s

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 (

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 t

h
e

 P
o

lic
e

) 
to

 w
o

rk
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

a
n

d
 p

ro
-a

c
ti
v
e

ly
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

g
ra

ff
it
i 
a

s
 o

p
p

o
s
e

d
 t

o
 j
u

s
t 

re
m

o
v
in

g
 i
t 

w
h

e
n

 i
t 

o
c
c
u

rs
. 

T
h

is
 f

o
rm

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 g
ra

ff
it
i 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 I
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
is

, 
th

e
 r

o
ll 

o
u

t 
o

f 
n

e
w

 h
a

n
d

 h
e

ld
 d

e
v
ic

e
s
 t

o
 s

u
rv

e
y
o

rs
 s

h
o

u
ld

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 
a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 r

e
a

c
t 

to
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 g

ra
ff

it
i.
 T

h
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 w

it
h

d
ra

w
a

l 
o

f 
N

R
F

 

fu
n

d
in

g
 a

ls
o

 a
p

p
ly

 t
o

 t
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r.

1
1

Page 43



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 -
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
0
7
/0
8

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

&
 

M
e

a
s
u

re

G
o

o
d

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 

T
a

rg
e

t

F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 

R
e

s
u

lt

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 Y
e

a
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

T
re

n
d

 

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

B
o

tt
o

m
 

Q
u

a
rt

ile
 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

d
a

ta
)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

p
o

s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o

p

8
 =

 B
o

tt
o

m

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

d
a

ta
)

D
a

ta
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Is
s
u

e
s

7
2

B
V

-1
9

9
c

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 (

e
x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 a

s
 a

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

) 
fr

o
m

 w
h

ic
h

 u
n

a
c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 

le
v
e

ls
 o

f 
fl
y
-p

o
s
ti
n

g
 a

re
 v

is
ib

le
S

tr
e

e
t 

C
le

a
n

s
in

g
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

%
F

a
ll

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
↔

0
1

2
1

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

7
3

B
V

-1
9

9
d

T
h

e
 y

e
a

r-
o

n
-y

e
a

r 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 t

o
ta

l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
o

ta
l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 t

a
k
e

n
 t

o
 d

e
a

l 
w

it
h

 f
ly

 t
ip

p
in

g
S

tr
e

e
t 

C
le

a
n

s
in

g
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

L
e

v
e

l
F

a
ll

3
.0

0
2

.0
0

1
.0

0
↑

1
3

3
2

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

7
4

B
V

-2
1

8
a

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

n
e

w
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 o

f 
a

b
a

n
d

o
n

e
d

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 2

4
 h

o
u

rs
 o

f 
n

o
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
S

tr
e

e
t 

C
le

a
n

s
in

g
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

%
R

is
e

9
2

.5
4

9
2

.5
0

8
8

.3
1

↓
9

8
.5

5
8

2
8

7
.8

5
2

S
o

m
e

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

7
5

B
V

-2
1

8
b

L
A

A
-S

S
C

5
7

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

a
b

a
n

d
o

n
e

d
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
 r

e
m

o
v
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 2

4
 h

o
u

rs
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 p

o
in

t 
a

t 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 i
s
 

le
g

a
lly

 e
n

ti
tl
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
m

o
v
e

 t
h

e
 v

e
h

ic
le

S
tr

e
e

t 
C

le
a

n
s
in

g
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

%
R

is
e

9
2

.1
7

9
0

.0
0

8
2

.9
6

↓
9

7
.8

7
7

5
.5

8
7

.7
3

5
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

7
6

B
V

-8
9

C
P

A
-E

3
8

, 
L

A
A

-

S
S

C
5

6
T

h
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
S

tr
e

e
t 

C
le

a
n

s
in

g
S

u
rv

e
y

%
R

is
e

6
3

.0
0

N
.A

.
S

e
e

 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
7

3
6

2
5

9
.8

7
5

2
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

O
u

r 
g

o
o

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
n

 t
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
. 

T
h

e
 f

ly
e

r 
d

ru
m

s
 s

it
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e

 c
it
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 h

a
s
 e

n
a

b
le

d
 u

s
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h

is
 s

c
o

re
 f

o
r 

th
re

e
 y

e
a

rs
 r

u
n

n
in

g
.

O
u

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
n

 t
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 m
e

a
s
u

re
d

 o
n

 a
 s

c
a

le
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 1

 a
n

d
 4

. 
A

 s
p

re
a

d
s
h

e
e

t 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
A

g
e

n
c
y
 i
s
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
 t

h
is

 s
c
o

re
. 

T
h

e
 s

c
o

re
 w

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 r
e

la
te

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

:

1
 -

 `
V

e
ry

 E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

' 

2
 -

 `
E

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

'

3
 -

 `
G

o
o

d
' 

4
 -

 `
P

o
o

r'

A
s
 s

u
c
h

, 
`1

' i
s
 t

h
e

 b
e

s
t 

s
c
o

re
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 `
4

' i
s
 t

h
e

 w
o

rs
t.

S
in

c
e

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 o

u
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 f
ro

m
 `

g
o

o
d

' t
o

 `
v
e

ry
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

' t
h

ro
u

g
h

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
. 

A
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d

 t
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

s
e

t 
fo

r 
2

0
0

7
/0

8
.

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 h
a

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
4

 (
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 a

n
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 o

f 
9

3
.0

4
%

) 
th

e
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

ly
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

, 
m

e
a

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s
n

't 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 i
ts

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

¿
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 w
o

n
¿

t 
b

e
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

ly
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

, 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s
 n

e
g

o
ti
a

te
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

o
lic

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
 t

o
 c

o
v
e

r 
a

n
y
 a

b
s
e

n
c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r.

 T
h

is
 i
s
 s

o
m

e
th

in
g

 t
h

a
t 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 w
a

s
n

¿
t 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 

th
e

 r
e

-s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 h

a
s
 e

n
a

b
le

d
 a

n
o

th
e

r 
o

ff
ic

e
r 

to
 b

e
 t

ra
in

e
d

 u
p

 t
o

 d
e

a
l 
w

it
h

 a
b

a
n

d
o

n
e

d
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
, 

w
h

ic
h

 s
h

o
u

ld
 m

in
im

is
e

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
c
o

v
e

r 
n

o
t 

b
e

in
g

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
.

O
v
e

ra
ll,

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

a
b

o
v
e

 t
h

e
 'A

ll 
E

n
g

la
n

d
' a

v
e

ra
g

e
 w

h
ic

h
 s

ta
n

d
s
 a

t 
8

7
.3

9
%

. 
A

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 s
o

m
e

 d
a

ta
 q

u
a

lit
y
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
is

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r,
 i
t 

is
 b

e
lie

v
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 I
T

 s
y
s
te

m
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 i
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 a

s
s
is

t 
in

 a
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 t

h
e

m
.

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
n

o
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

fo
rm

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
s
e

t,
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
it
 l
o

c
a

lly
.

O
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 

tw
o

 m
o

n
th

s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 h
a

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
d

 9
3

.3
4

%
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r,
  

th
e

 p
o

o
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 o
v
e

r 
p

re
v
io

u
s
 q

u
a

rt
e

rs
 h

a
s
 p

u
lle

d
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 s

c
o

re
 d

o
w

n
, 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
 D

o
n

c
a

s
te

r 
M

o
to

r 
S

p
a

re
s
 (

D
M

S
) 

h
a

v
e

 n
o

t 
m

e
t 

th
e

ir
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 O
n

g
o

in
g

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

fl
o

o
d

in
g

 h
a

v
e

 h
in

d
e

re
d

 t
h

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

D
M

S
 a

s
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 b

a
s
e

d
 i
n

 T
o

llb
a

r 
a

n
d

 w
e

re
 f

o
rc

e
d

 t
o

 m
o

v
e

 s
it
e

 a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 f

lo
o

d
s
. 

T
h

e
ir
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
a

n
d

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

d
ia

lo
g

u
e

 t
a

k
e

s
 p

la
c
e

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

re
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e

d
 p

ro
m

p
tl
y
 a

n
d

 l
e

s
s
o

n
s
 a

re
 l
e

a
rn

e
d

. 
T

h
e

ir
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
n

 t
h

is
 B

V
P

I 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

 f
o

c
a

l 
p

o
in

t 
w

h
e

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

is
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 y
e

a
r.

A
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e

 f
lo

o
d

in
g

, 
th

e
re

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 s

o
m

e
ti
m

e
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 t

o
 m

o
v
e

 a
 v

e
h

ic
le

 w
h

ic
h

 d
e

la
y
s
 D

M
S

. 

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
n

o
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

fo
rm

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
s
e

t,
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
it
 l
o

c
a

lly
.

N
o

 C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 S

u
p

p
lie

d

1
2

Page 44



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 -
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
0
7
/0
8

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

&
 

M
e

a
s
u

re

G
o

o
d

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 

T
a

rg
e

t

F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 

R
e

s
u

lt

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 Y
e

a
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

T
re

n
d

 

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

B
o

tt
o

m
 

Q
u

a
rt

ile
 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

d
a

ta
)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

p
o

s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o

p

8
 =

 B
o

tt
o

m

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 

d
a

ta
)

D
a

ta
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Is
s
u

e
s

7
7

L
K

I-
S

C
6

T
h

e
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 t

im
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 t

o
 r

e
m

o
v
e

 f
ly

 t
ip

s
S

tr
e

e
t 

C
le

a
n

s
in

g
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

D
a

y
s

F
a

ll
1

.1
1

1
.1

5
1

.6
6

↓
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

7
8

T
S

-E
3

0

C
o

n
s
u

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
ra

d
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

T
ra

d
in

g
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s

A
n

n
u

a
lly

%
R

is
e

8
5

.0
0

8
0

.0
0

8
3

.6
0

↓
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

7
9

T
S

-E
3

1

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
ra

d
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

T
ra

d
in

g
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s

A
n

n
u

a
lly

%
R

is
e

9
1

.0
0

8
0

.0
0

9
0

.8
0

↓
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

8
0

T
S

-E
3

2

T
ra

d
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
, 

v
is

it
s
 t

o
 h

ig
h

 r
is

k
 p

re
m

is
e

s
T

ra
d

in
g

 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

1
0

0
.0

0
1

0
0

.0
0

1
0

0
.0

0
↑

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

8
1

T
S

-E
3

3
a

T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 -

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 -
 h

ig
h

 r
is

k
 p

re
m

is
e

s
T

ra
d

in
g

 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

1
0

0
.0

0
9

5
.0

0
1

0
0

.0
0

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

8
2

T
S

-E
3

3
b

T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 -

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 -
 m

e
d

iu
m

 r
is

k
 p

re
m

is
e

s
T

ra
d

in
g

 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

1
0

0
.0

0
9

5
.0

0
9

9
.4

0
↓

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

8
3

T
S

-E
3

3
c

T
ra

d
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 -

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 -
 l
o

w
 r

is
k
 p

re
m

is
e

s
T

ra
d

in
g

 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

9
7

.1
0

9
5

.0
0

1
0

0
.0

0
↑

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

T
h

is
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
e

a
s
u

re
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 t

h
o

s
e

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h

 t
ra

d
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
. 

N
o

n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 a

re
 t

h
o

s
e

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 m
a

jo
r 

in
fr

in
g

e
m

e
n

t.
 P

re
m

is
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 b
ro

u
g

h
t 

b
a

c
k
 i
n

to
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 f
o

llo
w

 u
p

 

e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
v
is

it
s
 o

r 
w

h
e

re
 p

ro
s
e

c
u

ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

s
ti
g

a
te

d
 a

re
 d

e
e

m
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

fo
r 

th
is

 m
e

a
s
u

re
. 

T
h

e
 t

o
p

 q
u

a
rt

ile
 f

ig
u

re
 a

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

t 
is

 9
5

%
 -

 1
0

0
, 

9
9

.4
 a

n
d

 1
0

0
%

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
h

ig
h

, 
m

e
d

iu
m

 a
n

d
 l
o

w
 r

is
k
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 r

e
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
.

T
h

is
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
e

a
s
u

re
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 t

h
o

s
e

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h

 t
ra

d
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
. 

N
o

n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 a

re
 t

h
o

s
e

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 m
a

jo
r 

in
fr

in
g

e
m

e
n

t.
 P

re
m

is
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 b
ro

u
g

h
t 

b
a

c
k
 i
n

to
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 f
o

llo
w

 u
p

 

e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
v
is

it
s
 o

r 
w

h
e

re
 p

ro
s
e

c
u

ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

s
ti
g

a
te

d
 a

re
 d

e
e

m
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

fo
r 

th
is

 m
e

a
s
u

re
. 

T
h

e
 t

o
p

 q
u

a
rt

ile
 f

ig
u

re
 a

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

t 
is

 9
5

%
 -

 1
0

0
, 

9
9

.4
 a

n
d

 1
0

0
%

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
h

ig
h

, 
m

e
d

iu
m

 a
n

d
 l
o

w
 r

is
k
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 r

e
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
.

T
h

is
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
e

a
s
u

re
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 t

h
o

s
e

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h

 t
ra

d
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
. 

N
o

n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 a

re
 t

h
o

s
e

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 m
a

jo
r 

in
fr

in
g

e
m

e
n

t.
 P

re
m

is
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 b
ro

u
g

h
t 

b
a

c
k
 i
n

to
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 f
o

llo
w

 u
p

 

e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
v
is

it
s
 o

r 
w

h
e

re
 p

ro
s
e

c
u

ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

s
ti
g

a
te

d
 a

re
 d

e
e

m
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

fo
r 

th
is

 m
e

a
s
u

re
. 

T
h

e
 t

o
p

 q
u

a
rt

ile
 f

ig
u

re
 a

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

t 
is

 9
5

%
 -

 1
0

0
, 

9
9

.4
 a

n
d

 1
0

0
%

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
h

ig
h

, 
m

e
d

iu
m

 a
n

d
 l
o

w
 r

is
k
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 r

e
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
.

T
h

e
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
d

a
y
s
 t

a
k
e

n
 t

o
 r

e
m

o
v
e

 a
 f

ly
 t

ip
 h

a
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

y
 0

.5
5

 d
a

y
s
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 a
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
`c

re
w

 s
p

o
ts

' i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r.
 C

re
w

 s
p

o
ts

 a
re

 f
ly

 t
ip

s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 `
s
p

o
tt

e
d

' b
y
 L

C
C

 a
n

d
 p

ic
k
e

d
 u

p
 o

n
 

th
e

 s
a

m
e

 d
a

y
, 

a
s
 o

p
p

o
s
e

d
 t

o
 a

 f
ly

 t
ip

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 L
C

C
 b

y
 a

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 p
u

b
lic

. 

T
h

e
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 s
p

o
ts

 h
a

s
 a

 n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r.
 I

t 
is

 t
h

o
u

g
h

t 
th

a
t 

th
is

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
P

ri
d

e
 T

e
a

m
s
 (

E
P

T
s
) 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 v
a

ri
e

d
 w

o
rk

 t
h

e
y
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

. 
T

h
e

 E
P

T
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 

d
e

p
ri
v
e

d
 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
. 

A
m

o
n

g
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

th
in

g
s
 t

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 u

n
c
o

v
e

ri
n

g
 f

ly
 t

ip
s
. 

A
s
 t

h
e

ir
 w

o
rk

 m
o

v
e

s
 o

n
 i
n

 a
n

 a
re

a
, 

th
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

fl
y
 t

ip
s
 t

h
e

y
 u

n
c
o

v
e

r 
w

ill
 r

e
d

u
c
e

, 
le

a
d

in
g

 t
o

 f
e

w
e

r 
fl
y
 t

ip
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
re

w
s
 t

o
 s

p
o

t.

A
s
 s

u
c
h

, 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
id

n
't 

m
e

e
t 

it
s
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

t,
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 h
a

v
e

 a
 m

in
im

a
l 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

h
e

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
re

c
e

iv
e

s
.

T
h

e
 t

o
p

 q
u

a
rt

ile
 f

ig
u

re
 i
s
 7

5
%

. 
T

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
is

 8
0

%
 w

it
h

 a
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

8
3

%
 (

a
t 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
q

u
a

rt
e

r 
3

).
 

T
h

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 u

s
e

s
 a

 q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
n

a
ir
e

 t
h

a
t 

is
 s

e
n

t 
to

 c
o

m
p

la
in

a
n

ts
 (

w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
ta

c
te

d
 C

o
n

s
u

m
e

r 
D

ir
e

c
t 

a
n

d
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 o

n
to

 t
ra

d
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
) 

y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 t

o
ta

l 
b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 1

6
1

 r
e

tu
rn

s
. 

c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

 t
o

ta
l 
a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
: 

9
0

.8
 (

4
4

 r
e

tu
rn

s
)

T
h

e
 t

o
p

 q
u

a
rt

ile
 f

ig
u

re
 i
s
 7

5
%

. 
T

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
is

 8
0

%
 w

it
h

 a
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

9
0

%
 (

a
t 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
q

u
a

rt
e

r 
3

).
 T

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 w
a

s
 9

0
.8

%
 (

ro
u

n
d

e
d

 u
p

 t
o

 9
1

%
).

 

T
h

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 u

s
e

s
 a

 q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
n

a
ir
e

 t
h

a
t 

is
 s

e
n

t 
to

 t
ra

d
e

rs
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 h
a

d
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

w
it
h

 t
ra

d
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 i
s
 s

e
n

t 
o

n
 a

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 b

a
s
is

.

C
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

 t
o

ta
l 
a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
: 

1
1

0
 (

1
0

0
%

)

H
ig

h
 r

is
k
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 a

re
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 u

s
in

g
 a

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
s
c
h

e
m

a
. 

T
h

e
 t

o
p

 q
u

a
rt

ile
 f

ig
u

re
, 

ta
rg

e
t 

a
n

d
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
s
 1

0
0

%
. 

T
h

is
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
.

1
3

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



D
ra
ft
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
8
/2
0
0
9
 

E
x
tr
a
c
t 
re
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 (
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
) 

 

 

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
ri
s
k
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
 b
y
 

a
u
d
it
e
d
 b
o
d
y
 

R
e
s
id
u
a
l 

a
u
d
it
 r
is
k
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 

re
s
id
u
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 r
is
k
 

L
in
k
 t
o
 a
u
d
it
o
r’
s
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
ie
s
 

E
A
S
E
L
 a
n
d
 W

a
s
te
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t:
  

th
e
s
e
 a
m
b
it
io
u
s
 

p
ro
je
c
ts
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 i
n
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 

p
ro
je
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 

p
la
c
e
. 

Y
e
s
 

W
e
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 o
u
r 
w
o
rk
 

in
 t
h
e
s
e
 a
re
a
s
 i
n
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
. 

K
L
O
E
 4
.1
 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
m
a
n
a
g
e
s
 i
ts
 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 r
is
k
s
. 

 

 

 

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 (
E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
 A
N
D
 N
E
IG
H
B
O
U
R
H
O
O
D
S
) 
–
 C
A
R
R
Y
 O
V
E
R
 I
T
E
M
S
 F
R
O
M
 2
0
0
7
/0
8
 

 

K
e
y
: 
 

C
C
F
A
 /
 R
F
S
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 /
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

P
M
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

M
S
R
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

B
 

B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

R
P
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

S
C
 

S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
P
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

C
I 

C
a
ll 
in
 

 

U
n
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 I
te
m
s
 

A
n
ti
 S
o
c
ia
l 
B
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
im
e
d
 a
t 

a
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
. 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
. 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 P
ro
je
c
ts
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 u
p
d
a
te
s
 o
n
 m
a
jo
r 
re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
je
c
ts
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
. 

D
e
ta
ils
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
. 

L
e
e
d
s
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 M
a
rk
e
t 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
u
tl
in
in
g
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
/ 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

a
im
e
d
 a
t 
a
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
ri
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
f 

th
e
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 M
a
rk
e
t 
R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

B
o
a
rd
. 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 M
a
rk
e
t 
R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

B
o
a
rd
 i
n
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
. 

R
o
d
e
n
t 
C
o
n
tr
o
l 

U
p
d
a
te
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
g
re
e
d
 t
a
rg
e
t 
ti
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 

p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
w
o
rk
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 /
 p
la
n
n
e
d
. 

T
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

n
e
w
 m

u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
y
e
a
r.
 

S
ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
d
a
ta
 a
n
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

ra
p
e
 c
ri
m
e
s
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
p
ro
s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
 r
a
te
s
 a
n
d
 s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 d
e
p
lo
y
e
d
 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 o
f 
s
u
c
h
 c
ri
m
e
s
. 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 s
c
o
p
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 n
e
w
 m

u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
y
e
a
r.
 

B
ri
ta
in
’s
 C
le
a
n
e
s
t 
C
it
y
 

(t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 r
e
v
is
it
in
g
 t
h
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
) 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 p
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
s
 /
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
 

re
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 B
ri
ta
in
’s
 C
le
a
n
e
s
t 
C
it
y
 A
w
a
rd
. 
  

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
. 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

a
ro
u
n
d
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
E
s
ta
te
s
 

T
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 s
c
o
p
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
. 

Page 49



 
 

S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 (
E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
 A
N
D
 N
E
IG
H
B
O
U
R
H
O
O
D
S
) 
–
 C
A
R
R
Y
 O
V
E
R
 I
T
E
M
S
 F
R
O
M
 2
0
0
7
/0
8
 

 

K
e
y
: 
 

C
C
F
A
 /
 R
F
S
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 /
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

P
M
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

M
S
R
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

B
 

B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

R
P
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

S
C
 

S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
P
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

C
I 

C
a
ll 
in
 

 

U
n
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 I
te
m
s
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
 i
n
to
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

L
e
tt
in
g
 P
re
s
s
u
re
s
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
’s
 i
n
q
u
ir
y
 

re
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 L
e
tt
in
g
 

P
re
s
s
u
re
s
. 

T
im
in
g
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
. 

S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

C
O

2
 e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
’s
 

s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

C
O

2
 e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 

T
im
in
g
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
. 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
ra
c
k
in
g
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 

in
q
u
ir
ie
s
, 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 a
s
k
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 

w
h
ic
h
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
t 
w
is
h
e
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
. 

T
im
in
g
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
. 

 

Page 50



L
E

E
D

S
 C

IT
Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

 
F
O

R
W

A
R

D
 P

L
A

N
 O

F
 K

E
Y
 D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 
F
o
r 
th
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 1
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
8
 t
o
 3
0
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

 

K
e
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(T
o
 w
h
o
m
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 m
a
d
e
) 

U
n
d
e
r 
o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 

P
o
lic
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
le
g
a
l 

p
o
w
e
rs
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

(P
o
rt
fo
lio
: 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

a
n
d
 H
o
u
s
in
g
) 

 

1
1
/6
/0
8
 

A
L
M
O
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

L
e
e
d
s
 T
e
n
a
n
t 

F
e
d
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 

  

T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

 

A
re
a
 F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 S
c
h
e
d
u
le
s
 

2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 t
o
 a
g
re
e
 

th
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
. 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

(P
o
rt
fo
lio
: 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

a
n
d
 H
o
u
s
in
g
) 

 

1
1
/6
/0
8
 

P
re
v
io
u
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 a
n
d
 

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 A
re
a
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
 a
n
d
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

  

T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

 

Page 51



 
K

e
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(T
o
 w
h
o
m
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 m
a
d
e
) 

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 P
ri
v
a
te
 

R
e
n
te
d
 S
e
c
to
r 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 

E
n
e
rg
y
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 

E
n
d
o
rs
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
re
p
o
rt
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
T
h
e
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 w
ill
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
rm
a
l 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 i
n
 

th
e
 p
ri
v
a
te
 r
e
n
te
d
 s
e
c
to
r 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 t
h
e
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
fu
e
l 
p
o
v
e
rt
y
 

a
m
o
n
g
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 w
ill
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 

c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 t
h
e
 

c
ri
te
ri
a
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 V
is
io
n
 

fo
r 
L
e
e
d
s
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 N
a
rr
o
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 

G
a
p
 A
g
e
n
d
a
. 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

(P
o
rt
fo
lio
: 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

a
n
d
 H
o
u
s
in
g
) 

 

1
1
/6
/0
8
 

F
u
ll 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 w
it
h
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 L
a
n
d
lo
rd
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
v
e
 G
ro
u
p
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
s
 a
 

m
in
im
u
m
. 

  

T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

 

 

Page 52



  N
O

T
E

S
 

 K
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
  
a
re
 t
h
o
s
e
 e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
: 

•
 
w
h
ic
h
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 i
n
c
u
rr
in
g
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 o
r 
m
a
k
in
g
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 o
v
e
r 
£
5
0
0
,0
0
0
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
, 
o
r 

•
 
a
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
e
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 l
iv
in
g
 o
r 
w
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
 a
n
 a
re
a
 c
o
m
p
ri
s
in
g
 t
w
o
 o
r 
m
o
re
 w
a
rd
s
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

 P
o
rt

fo
li
o
s
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

 

C
e
n
tr
a
l 
a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
R
ic
h
a
rd
 B
re
tt
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
A
n
d
re
w
 C
a
rt
e
r 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
S
te
v
e
 S
m
it
h
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
J
o
h
n
 L
e
s
lie
 C
a
rt
e
r 

L
e
is
u
re
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
J
o
h
n
 P
ro
c
te
r 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
S
te
w
a
rt
 G
o
lt
o
n
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
R
ic
h
a
rd
 H
a
rk
e
r 

A
d
u
lt
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
P
e
te
r 
H
a
rr
a
n
d
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 L
a
b
o
u
r 
G
ro
u
p
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
K
e
it
h
 W
a
k
e
fi
e
ld
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 M
o
rl
e
y
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
G
ro
u
p
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
R
o
b
e
rt
 F
in
n
ig
a
n
 

A
d
v
is
o
ry
 M
e
m
b
e
r 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
J
u
d
it
h
 B
la
k
e
 

 In
 c
a
s
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 K
e
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 t
o
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 a
re
 n
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
, 
5
 d
a
y
s
 n
o
ti
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 s
u
c
h
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 b
y
 w
a
y
 o
f 
th
e
 a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 
 

Page 53



   
L
E

E
D

S
 C

IT
Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

 
B

U
D

G
E

T
 A

N
D

 P
O

L
IC

Y
 F

R
A

M
E

W
O

R
K

 D
E

C
IS

IO
N

S
 

 D
e
c
is

io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 D

a
te

 o
f 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 N
O

T
E

S
: 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
, 
in
 A
rt
ic
le
 4
, 
d
e
fi
n
e
s
 t
h
o
s
e
 p
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 w
h
ic
h
 m
a
k
e
 u
p
 t
h
e
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 P
o
lic
y
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
. 
D
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
re
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 F
o
rw
a
rd
 P
la
n
 a
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 P
o
lic
y
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
. 
 

 F
u
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
( 
a
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
f 
a
ll 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
C
o
u
n
c
il)
 a
re
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 P
o
lic
y
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
. 

Page 54



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 11th June, 2008 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY, 14TH MAY, 2008 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor A Carter in the Chair 

 Councillors R Brett, J L Carter, R Finnigan, 
S Golton, R Harker, P Harrand, J Procter, 
S Smith and K Wakefield 

 
 
 

222 Occupation of the Chair  
In the absence of Councillor Andrew Carter, Councillor Brett assumed the 
Chair. 
 

223 Substitute Member  
Under the terms of Executive Procedure Rule 2.3 Councillor R Lewis was 
invited to attend the meeting on behalf of Councillor Blake. 
 

224 Exclusion of the Public  
RESOLVED – That the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated exempt on the 
ground that it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or 
the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public were present 
there would be disclosure to them of exempt information so designated as 
follows: 
 
(a) Appendices A and B to the report referred to in minute 234 under the 

terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the 
grounds that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs 
the public interest in disclosing the information by reason of the fact 
that disclosure could prejudice the interests of all parties concerned 
and therefore be prejudicial to the public interest. 

 
(b) The appendix to the report referred to in minute 235 under the terms of 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds that 
the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information by reason of the fact it contains 
commercially sensitive information which, if disclosed, could be 
prejudicial to contract confidentiality. 

 
(c) Appendices 1 and 2 and plans 1 and 2 to the report referred to in 

minute 236 under the terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 
10.4(3) and on the grounds that the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information as 
disclosure may prejudice the outcome of the procurement process and 
the financial offer made by the proposed preferred operator to manage 
the arena. 

 

Page 55



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 11th June, 2008 

 

225 Declaration of Interests  
Councillor Wakefield declared a personal and prejudicial interest in the item 
relating to ‘Raising Expectations – White Paper Consultation Response’ 
(minute 227) due to being a member of the Learning and Skills Council. 
 
Councillor Finnigan declared a personal interest in the item relating to ‘Raising 
Expectations – White Paper Consultation Response’ (minute 227) due to 
being a governor at Joseph Priestley College. 
 

226 Minutes  
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 16th April 2008 be 
approved. 
 
 
CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
 

227 Raising Expectations - White Paper Consultation Response  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report briefing the Board 
on the Government’s White Paper ‘Raising Expectations: Enabling the 
System to Deliver’ and suggesting how the authority might respond to the 
consultation. An updated version of the consultation response form was 
circulated at the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED – 

(a) That the draft consultation response be noted and the relevant 
Executive Member and Chief Executive of Education Leeds be 
authorised to finalise the document and forward it to the DCSF by the 
deadline of 9th June 2008. 

(b) That the early work on sub-regional co-ordination be noted and that an 
update be provided in October 2008 

 
(Having declared a personal and prejudicial interest Councillor Wakefield left 
the meeting during consideration of this matter) 
 

228 Vacation and Occupation of the Chair  
Councillor Andrew Carter entered the meeting and assumed the Chair. 
 

229 Temple Newsam Halton Primary School  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on a proposal to 
carry out capital works and to incur expenditure in respect of a scheme to 
construct an extension and carry out alterations at Templenewsam Halton 
Primary School. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the access of 100% of the capital receipt arising from the sale of 

the Templenewsam Halton Primary School Victorian stone annexe 
building be approved. 

(b) That the design proposals in respect of the scheme to extend the main 
school building be approved. 

Page 56



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 11th June, 2008 

 

(c) That expenditure of £850,000 from capital scheme number 
14748/00/000 be authorised. 

 
230 Phase 3 Children's Centre Programme  

The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report updating members on 
the success of phases 1 and 2 of the Children’s Centre Programme, outlining 
the statutory guidance for the planning and delivery of phase 3 of the 
programme, and providing details of the allocation made to Leeds, the 
caveats upon the allocation and the outcomes of the consultation work on the 
location of the final centres.  The report also sought approval for the location 
of the centres, the order in which they will be constructed and the injection of 
£3,610,487 into the capital programme to implement the plan. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That phase 3 of the Children’s Centre Implementation Plan be 

approved. 
(b) That the phasing of the centres as recommended by Education Leeds 

and the Early Years Service be approved. 
(c) That the injection of £3,610,487 into the capital programme to design 

and construct the phase 3 centres be approved. 
 
LEISURE 
 

231 Leeds Public Rights of Way Improvement Plan - Consultation Draft  
The Director of City Development submitted a report proposing the 
commencement of the twelve week public consultation process for the Leeds 
Public Rights of Way Improvement Plan. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the contents of the report and the draft Executive Summary and 

Action Plan appended to the report be noted and the commencement 
of a twelve week public consultation period for the Rights of Way 
Improvement Plan be approved. 

(b) That following the conclusion of the consultation period, officers bring 
back a final version of the Public Rights of Way Improvement Plan for 
approval. 

 
CENTRAL AND CORPORATE 
 

232 Numbering Strategy and Golden Number  
The Assistant Chief Executive (Planning, Policy and Improvement) submitted 
a report seeking approval for the development of a new telephone numbering 
strategy and providing an update on the development of a ‘golden number’ for 
customers accessing principal Council services by means of the Corporate 
Contact Centre. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the 0113 prefix as Leeds City Council’s telephone numbering 

strategy be adopted. 

Page 57



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 11th June, 2008 

 

(b) That the Assistant Chief Executive (Planning, Policy and Improvement) 
be authorised to take steps to implement the telephone numbering 
strategy and introduce a range of ‘silver’ telephone numbers for 
principal Council services, making it possible for customers to get 
through to the right person first time and, a ‘golden’ number to enable 
easier access to Council services. 

 
233 Leeds Strategic Plan 2008 - 2011: Approval of Local Area Agreement 

Responsibilities  
The Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Planning and Improvement) submitted 
a report presenting the draft indicators and targets selected to support the 
delivery of the strategic outcomes and improvement priorities in the Leeds 
Strategic Plan, which also represent the draft Local Area Agreement for 
Leeds. The report also sought approval of the draft indicators and targets prior 
to their submission to the Secretary of State and Full Council as part of the 
Leeds Strategic Plan.  An updated version of the proposed indicators and 
targets for Leeds’ local area agreement was circulated at the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That Appendix 1 be approved as Leeds’ local area agreement prior to 

its submission to the Secretary of State for formal sign off. 
(b) That the Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Planning and Improvement) 

be authorised to make minor amendments, if required, to Leeds’ local 
area agreement prior to its submission to the Secretary of State on 30th 
May 2008. If any revisions are required then the Assistant Chief 
Executive (Policy, Planning and Improvement) should inform members 
of the Executive prior to submission. 

(c) That the full and final version of the Leeds Strategic Plan incorporating 
the agreed indicators and targets, be submitted to the July meeting of 
full Council for final approval as required by the Council’s budget and 
policy framework. 

 
234 Yorkshire County Cricket Club  

The Director of Resources submitted a report on consents and variations 
requested by Yorkshire County Cricket Club in relation to their loan 
agreement with the Council. 
 
Following consideration of the appendices designated as exempt under 
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) which were considered in 
private at the conclusion of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the necessary consents and agreements to vary the Council’s 

loan agreement to facilitate Yorkshire County Cricket Club entering into 
the transactions referred to in this report be granted. 

(b) That the proposals in respect of dealing with future requests for 
consents or variations under the loan agreement with Yorkshire County 
Cricket Club as detailed at paragraph 5.1 of the report be agreed. 

 
DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 

Page 58



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 11th June, 2008 

 

 
235 Advertising on Lamp Posts - Proposals for Distribution of Income  

The Director of City Development submitted a report proposing a scheme 
relating to the distribution of income received from lamp post advertising as 
described in the report. 
 
Following consideration of the appendix designated as exempt under Access 
to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) which was considered in private at the 
conclusion of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED – That the arrangements for distribution of income from lamp 
post advertising as described in the report be approved. 
 

236 Proposed Leeds Arena Development - Selection of Preferred Operator  
The Director of City Development submitted a report on the selection of the 
preferred and reserve operators for the proposed Leeds Arena, and seeking 
authority for the Director of City Development to enter into a legal agreement 
with the preferred operator (or reserve operator, should the need arise) of the 
Leeds Arena on the terms contained within the report. 
 
Following consideration of appendices 1 and 2 and associated plans to this 
report designated as exempt under Access to Information Procedure Rule 
10.4(3) which were considered at the conclusion of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That  Bidder B be approved as the preferred operator for the proposed 

Leeds arena as detailed in Appendix 1 of the report. 
 (b) That the Director of City Development be authorised to enter into a 

legal agreement with the preferred arena operator on the terms 
outlined in Appendix 2 of the report.  

(c) That Bidder A be approved as the reserve operator for the proposed 
Leeds arena as detailed in Appendix 1 of the report 

(d) That the Director of City Development be authorised to enter into a 
conditional legal agreement with bidder A on the terms outlined in 
Appendix 2 of the report. 

 (e) That in the event that the preferred operator for the arena as detailed in 
Appendix 1 of the report withdraws from the project or varies their 
submission in a manner which results in the reserve bidder’s 
submission being more advantageous to the Council, the Director of 
City Development be authorised, with the concurrence of the Executive 
Member for Development and Regeneration, to take appropriate action 
to secure the reserve bidder pursuant to the conditional agreement 
previously entered into with bidder A as the preferred operator for the 
arena. 

 
237 Main Street, Thorner - Over 55s Association  

The Director of City Development submitted a report on discussions which 
have taken place with the Thorner Over-55’s Association and seeking support 
for a transfer of a ‘Community Asset’ as a less than best consideration 
disposal on the terms recommended within the report. 

Page 59



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 11th June, 2008 

 

 
RESOLVED – That a 50 year lease at nil rent be granted to the Thorner Over-
55’s Association and for the Council to continue the rental subsidy, in line with 
the basis upon which funds were granted by the Council and other bodies. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
 

238 Graffiti Strategy  
The Chief Environmental Services Officer submitted a report seeking approval 
of a graffiti strategy for Leeds. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Graffiti Strategy be approved. 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE OF PUBLICATION:   16TH MAY 2008 
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN (5.00 PM ) 23RD MAY 2008 
 
 
(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items Called In by 12 noon on 
Wednesday 28th May 2008) 
 
 
 
 

Page 60



 
 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board:  Environment and Neighbourhoods 
 
Date:    16th June 2008 
 
Subject:  Determine Work Programme 2008/09  
 

        
 
 
1.0      Purpose of Report  

 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to determine the Board’s work programme for 2008/09.  
 
2.0      Introduction 
 
2.1     The previous Agenda item provided inputs to the development of the Board’s work 

programme.  Having considered the written information and having discussed 
relevant issues with the Executive Member and officers, the Board is now asked to 
consider formulating a draft work programme.  

 
2.2 Members are reminded that if additional information is required in order to determine 

the programme this can be obtained via the use of informal meetings of the Scrutiny 
Board. 

 
2.3 In formulating the  work programme the Scrutiny Board shall determine; 
 

• how the proposed inquiry meets criteria approved from time to time by the 
Scrutiny Advisor Group (Attached as Appendix 1) 

• whether the programme can be adequately resourced and 
timetabled.(Appendix 2) 

 

3.0   Recommendations 
 
3.1     Members are requested to consider the Board’s work programme. 
 
 
 
 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Peter Marrington 
 
Tel: 39 51151 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 61



 
Appendix 1 

 
 

SCRUTINY BOARD PROCEDURE RULES GUIDANCE NOTE 7 
 

INQUIRY SELECTION CRITERIA 
 
 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules require Scrutiny Boards, before deciding to undertake 

an Inquiry, to: 
 

Consider how a proposed Inquiry meets criteria approved from time to time; and 
 
Consult with any relevant Director and Executive Member 

 
1.2 This is to ensure that Scrutiny Boards, when agreeing to undertake an Inquiry, have 

considered carefully the reasons for that Inquiry, its objectives, whether it can be 
adequately resourced  in terms of Member and Officer time and have sought the views of 
the relevant Director and  Executive Member. 

 
1.3 The decision whether to undertake an Inquiry or not rests with the Scrutiny Board. 
 
2.0 INQUIRY SELECTION CRITERIA  
 
2.1 At the time of deciding to undertake an Inquiry, the Scrutiny Board will refer to the Inquiry 

Selection Criteria within this Guidance Note and formally identify which of the agreed 
criteria the proposed Inquiry meets.  The Board will also record the comments of the 
relevant Director and Executive Member.   This process will be recorded in the Scrutiny 
Board minutes. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 62



 
 
 

INQUIRY SELECTION CRITERIA 

Scrutiny Board   ______________________________ 

 
Inquiry Title    ______________________________ 
 
Anticipated Start Date ______________________________ 
 
Anticipated Finish Date ______________________________ 
 

 The Inquiry meets the following criteria 
 

● It addresses the Council’s agreed Strategic outcomes by   
reviewing the effectiveness of policy to achieve strategic outcomes  
as defined by the Leeds Strategic Plan 

● Shaping and developing policy through influencing pre-policy 
      discussion  
 
It fulfils a performance management function by 
 

● Reviewing  performance of significant parts of service    
 
● Addressing a poor performing service                                                   
 
● Addressing a high level of user dissatisfaction  with the service 
 
● Addressing a pattern of budgetary overspends 
 
● Addressing matters raised by external auditors and inspectors 

 
 
 
 

● Addresses an issue of high public interest           
 
● Reviews a Major or Key Officer decision 
 
● Reviews an Executive Board decision 
 
● Reviews a series of decisions which have a significant impact  

 
● Has been requested by the Executive Board/Full Council/Scrutiny 

 Advisory Group  
 

● looks at innovative change 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments of relevant Director and Executive Member (Attach additional sheet if necessary)  
 
 
 
Date  
 

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 B

O
A

R
D

 (
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 N
E

IG
H

B
O

U
R

H
O

O
D

S
) 
- 
L
A
S
T
 R
E
V
IS
E
D
  
 

 IT
E
M
 

D
E
S
C
R
IP
T
IO
N
 

N
O
T
E
S
 

T
Y
P
E
 O
F
 I
T
E
M
 

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
 A
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 U
n
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

IT
E
M
 

D
E
S
C
R
IP
T
IO
N
 

N
O
T
E
S
 

T
Y
P
E
 O
F
 I
T
E
M
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
: 
2
4
th
  
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
: 
8
T
H
  
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
    

 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
: 
1
3
th
  
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
: 
1
0
T
H
  
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
: 
8
T
H
  
  
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
: 
1
2
T
H
  
J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

 

 
 

 
 

Page 65



S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 B

O
A

R
D

 (
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 N
E

IG
H

B
O

U
R

H
O

O
D

S
) 
- 
L
A
S
T
 R
E
V
IS
E
D
  
 

IT
E
M
 

D
E
S
C
R
IP
T
IO
N
 

N
O
T
E
S
 

T
Y
P
E
 O
F
 I
T
E
M
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
: 
9
th
  
F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
: 
1
6
T
H
  
  
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
: 
  
2
0
T
H
  
  
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
  

 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 K
e
y
: 
 

C
C
F
A
 /
 R
F
S
 –
 
C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
c
a
ll 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 /
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

R
P
 –
  
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

D
P
 –
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

M
S
R
 –
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
M
 –
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

B
 –
 B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

S
C
 –
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

C
I 
–
 C
a
ll 
in
 

 

Page 66


	Agenda
	6 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	7 INPUT TO WORK PROGRAMME 2008/09 -SOURCES OF WORK AND ESTABLISHING BOARD'S PRIORITIES
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6
	Appendix 7
	Appendix 8
	Appendix 9
	Appendix 10

	8 DETERMINE WORK PROGRAMME 2008/9
	Determine Work Programme 2008/9 -Appendix


